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over the last 12 months, and in common 
with all housing providers, the rhp 
Group has experienced a number of 
changes to its operating environment 
that have required a considered response 
by the Board. the chancellor’s budget in 
July, the subsequent Queen’s speech and 
the emerging housing and planning act 
have all served to change the landscape 
within which our customers live and 
organisations such as ours operate. the 
clear challenge to housing associations 
is that they should do more to contribute 
to the provision of additional housing 
supply whilst at the same time becoming 
more efficient.

during the year we concluded our 
Governance review that saw the 
transition from a traditional constituency 
based model for Board membership 
to one based on required skills and 
experience. 

this allowed for the addition to the 
Board, a number of well qualified 
members who have added value to 
our response to the challenges and 
opportunities that these changes 
present.

the Group’s strong financial position, 
high levels of customer satisfaction, 
leading levels of employee engagement 
and good levels of core performance 
have also meant that it was well 
positioned to respond positively to the 
external changes. the Board was able to 
resolve quickly that its 5 year strategy 
focusing on delivering 500 affordable 
homes by 2018 and being “one of the 
Best service providers in the uK and an 
Excellent Employer” continued to be 
relevant and re-affirmed its commitment 
to these objectives. 

our work during the year has focused 
upon developing ways to deliver better 
service levels to our customers but at 
a lower cost, while at the same time 
ensuring that we are making the best use 
of our assets to house those who need 
them most. over recent years we have 
invested in technology which supports 

self-service both from a customer but 
also an employee perspective. this has 
proved very successful as evidenced 
by the fact that the majority of repair 
appointments are now booked by our 
customers online. the Board therefore 
decided that it would re-define the 
service offer to its customers to reflect 
a world of rapidly changing customer 
expectations around ease of contact 
and speed of response. From april 
2016 we introduced rhpi which is a 
home contract and service offer for 
new customers. Key features of this 
new home contract include; a home 
refurbished to a high standard, 5 year 
fixed term tenancy, access to great 
online services, an essentials repair 
service and cashback at the end of the 
tenancy if the customer meets the 
conditions of the tenancy agreement and 
moves on to another home.

this new approach will reduce our 
operating costs by at least 15% over 
the next 5 years which will enable us to 
invest more into the provision of new 
affordable housing across west and 
south west london. we plan to invest 
over £250m over the next 8 years in the 
provision of new affordable homes. we 
also plan to maximise the impact of this 
investment in areas of huge demand 
for homes by offering home types and 
tenures that meet a range of acute 
local needs. this will be important 
for supporting the local and regional 
economy in the years ahead.

the speed with which we have been 
able to respond to the challenges 
and develop a new service offering 
has only been possible because of the 
strong foundations in place and the 
ideas and creativity and commitment 
demonstrated by our employees. our 
core performance was strong for the year 
with customer satisfaction of over 82%, 
employee satisfaction of 97%, 58 new 
homes delivered and operating margins 
of 41% and an overall surplus of £11.9m 
achieved for the year. 

we have welcomed 334 new customers, 
invested £17.1m into our existing homes 
to keep them in good condition and have 
supported 117 customers into work and 
training. 

these strong levels of core performance 
have again been recognised externally. 
our position in the uK customer 
satisfaction index improved to no. 17, we 
achieved an investors in people (iip) Gold 
award and were recognised as iip Gold 
Employer of the year, we retained our aa 
credit rating with standard and poors 
and recently were recently awarded the 
no 1 position in the Great place to work 
(Medium size) awards for 2015. 

the continued positive feedback from 
our customers, employees, organisations 
from the wider business world and the 
financial markets demonstrates that we 
are committed to the right strategy and 
that there is something about the way in 
which rhp operates which differentiates 
it from others both within and outside of 
our sector.

i am confident that the rhp Group is 
very well positioned to meet the many 
challenges and grasp the opportunities 
that are ahead of us and on behalf of the 
Board would like to thank our employees 
and other stakeholders for their 
commitment, energy and great ideas as 
it is through their efforts that rhp has 
become such a successful organisation.

 
 

 
 
 
John Newbury  
Group Chair

chair’s report
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Our GrOup Structure

the rhp Group consists of 3 entities 
with rhp, the parent company, being 
a registered charitable community 
Benefit society and a provider of 
affordable housing. rhp has two 
subsidiaries; co-op homes (south) ltd 
which is also a registered charitable 
community Benefit society and owns a 
small portfolio of homes and provides 
a comprehensive management service 
to co-ops in london and the south 
East, and rhp Finance plc which was 
established to raise funds from the 
capital markets for the Group.

Where We Operate

rhp operates principally in the 3 
london Boroughs of richmond, 
Kingston and hounslow in west and 
south west london, the map below 
illustrates the spread of our existing 
properties. co-op homes owns and 
manages properties across a wider 
area in london and the south-East. 
Going forward, as we introduce a 
predominantly digital service delivery 
model, we will explore development 
opportunities across a broader 
geographical area across west and 
south west london.

a SOcial BuSineSS

the rhp Group does not distribute its 
profits to shareholders, all surpluses 
from our core social housing activities 
are used to service debt, improve our 
reserves and provide capacity for us to 
build more new homes for current and 
future generations.

all profits that we make from 
commercial activities such as the 
letting of office space, shops and 
garages and surpluses from the sale 
of tranches of shared ownership 
properties are used to cross subsidise 
our development of new homes for rent 
which are let at sub-market levels.

What We DO

our key activities focus upon west and 
south west london, providing housing 
for rent, principally for individuals and 
families who are unable to rent or buy 
on the open market, and providing 
supported housing for people who need 
additional housing related support. we 
have recently started building homes 
for intermediate home ownership 
as part of our ongoing development 
programme.

the Group owns or manages 9,838 
properties, this includes 1,928 properties 
where a long lease has been sold and 
35 shared ownership properties. the 
remainder of our properties are used to 
provide social housing. 

the Group defines itself through its 
vision to deliver outstanding customer 
service, and we have continually 
improved and developed our strategies 
to achieve this since rhp was founded 
in 2000 following a stock transfer from 
the london Borough of richmond upon 
thames (lBrut) and further following 
co-op homes joining the Group in 2005.

to support our ambitions to be an 
excellent organisation, rhp has 
a Board and leadership team that 
capitalises on a wealth of experience 
from both within and outside the 
housing sector, and drives a strong 
internal focus on governance and 
leadership. this is serving us well in 
delivering continued financial strength, 
exceptional customer service, and a 
strong reputation as a great employer. 
rhp’s purpose is to provide decent 
quality affordable homes to people 
unable to rent or buy in the local private 
housing market; to deliver excellent 
housing services to our customers, and 
to support the development of strong, 
successful communities. 

to support this, rhp has a compelling 
vision with simple goals that employees, 
customers and other stakeholders can 
relate to and feel ownership of:

“to be one of the best service providers 
in the country and an excellent 
employer.”

through the pursuit and delivery 
of these goals we aim to provide a 
customer and employee experience 
that people recommend and to 
achieve business growth enabling us 
to provide more homes and a wider 
range of services to match the needs 
and aspirations of existing and future 
customers. we measure our success 
by how our customers feel about our 
services and their homes and, in our 
ambition to be one of the best service 
providers in the uK, we compare 
ourselves to the best in the country, not 
just in the housing sector.

in 2013, the Board updated its five 
year strategy, building on our existing 
strategy and direction, which can be 
summarised by our four goals:

•	 to be one of the best service 
providers in the country.

•	 to be an excellent employer.
•	 to provide more good quality 

affordable homes meeting a variety 
of identified needs that cannot be 
met in the local private market.

•	 to manage our assets effectively.

Why We DO it

we operate in an area where there is 
a growing demand for our products 
and services. demand outstrips supply 
across our operating area for all forms 
of housing to meet the needs of people 
from income groups ranging from £0 
to £70,000. with population growth 
in Kingston, richmond and hounslow 
over the next 10 years expected to be 
amongst the largest in london we 
anticipate that demand for appropriate 
housing for households across this 
income range will grow further.

we therefore wish to use our financial 
strength to provide additional new 
affordable homes but also to provide 
exceptional levels of customer service 
which compare favourably with the best 
anywhere in the uK.

over the last 5 years our focus on 
improving customer service and 
employee engagement has seen 

Board report
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our core performance improve with 
top quartile levels now the norm. 
levels of customer satisfaction 
remain consistently high and levels of 
employee engagement sustained at 
very high levels. we believe that this 
focus makes great business sense and 
we have seen our financial performance 
and resilience as an organisation 
improve over the same time period.

this focus has never been more 
important than over the last 12 
months when the housing sector 
has experienced a period of change 
and challenge as the external 
policy environment has introduced 
a significantly increased level of 
uncertainty.

Our OperatinG 
envirOnment

during the year a number of significant 
events have taken place which will 
impact upon the rhp Group, its 
customers, and potentially many of our 
stakeholders over the next 5 years.

in May, a conservative Government was 
elected and the provisions of a housing 
and planning Bill were announced in the 
Queen’s speech. in the summer budget 
in July further changes were announced 
which would limit our ability to increase 
our rents and further impact upon the 
level of welfare spending. later in the 
year, the office for national statistics 
(ons) announced the results of a review 
of the status of housing associations 
concluding that given the level of 
support and links to central government 
that they should be re-classified as 
public sector bodies with housing 
association debt being shown on the 
Government balance sheet. since this 
classification a number of de-regulatory 
measures were introduced into the 
draft housing and planning Bill aimed 
at ensuring that housing associations 
could be quickly classified as private 
bodies again.

hounslow

richmond

Kingston

Subsidiary 100% owned subsidiary
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the contents of the housing and 
planning act have continued to change 
in recent months with it receiving royal 
assent in May 2016. it contains a number 
of important provisions which impact 
upon the rhp Group:

•	 a 1% rent reduction is to be applied 
in each of the next 4 years, beginning 
in 2016/17, which reduces our 
anticipated income levels by £14.5m 
over the 4 year period.

•	 a voluntary right to Buy 
arrangement will be extended to all 
housing association tenants.

•	 welfare benefit caps will be 
reduced, payments to younger 
people will be restricted and 
mechanisms introduced to limit 
future increases in benefits.

•	 a renewed focus upon the 
development of new homes, 
with particular emphasis upon 
encouraging greater levels of home 
ownership.

•	 a number of de-regulatory 
measures aimed at providing 
housing associations with greater 
freedoms which include the removal 
of a regulatory consent regime 
for the disposal of social housing 
properties.

the Group’s strategy over recent years 
has ensured that we are well placed to 
be able to respond to the challenges 
of rent reductions and the desire for 
many more new homes to be delivered. 
the rhp Group Board was clear that 
we would respond positively to this 
changing operating environment 
and agreed that we should retain our 
financial strength by reducing costs and 
maintaining our commitment to build 
500 homes by 2018. 

we have taken further steps as the 
year has progressed agreeing that a 
pilot of a new service offer, rhpi, to our 
new tenants be introduced from april 
2016. this offer focuses on delivery of 
a better, more responsive, service to 
our customers at a lower cost to rhp. 
new tenants are provided with a great 
quality home for five years, supported 
by an essentials repair service, an 
extremely responsive online service 
delivery model, and an ability to earn 
£1,000 at the end of the 5 years if they 
are able to move on to another form of 
home and have met all of the conditions 
of their tenancy agreement.

the commitment to build new homes 
has also been revisited as the year has 
progressed with the Board agreeing to 
invest £250m over the next 8 years to 
deliver new affordable housing across 
west and south west london. this 
should support delivery of over 1,000 
new homes.

in May 2016 sadiq Khan was elected as 
the new london Mayor with housing 
being a priority issue in the election 
campaign. the new Mayor is likely to 
put renewed focus upon delivery of 
affordable housing for rent and on low 
cost home ownership products and we 
look forward to working with the new 
Mayor, the Greater london authority 
(Gla) and our other partners to play a 
full part in the delivery of the new truly 
affordable homes that london needs.

the outcome of the Eu referendum 
in June 2016 will inevitably lead to a 
period of economic uncertainty.  our 
strong liquidity levels and strong secure 
income stream positions the Group well 
to face the challenge ahead.

riSkS & uncertainty

rhp’s Board, Executive Group and 
Management team remain vigilant in 
assessing and mitigating our corporate 
risks, with a strong framework of 
management and control in place. 
this has been particularly important 
over the last year given the nature of 
the changes to our external operating 
environment and the challenges that this 
brings. the Group audit committee has 
a strong framework in place to monitor 
our corporate risks, ensuring that the 
Board obtains robust assurance that our 
risks are being managed and mitigated 
effectively, and that an appropriate 
framework is in place for doing so.

the Board has reviewed the key 
strategic risks which face the Group 
during the year and has grouped them 
under 9 key headings:

•	 risk relating to the external political 
and policy environment.

•	 asset related risks.
•	 income related risks.
•	 cost related risks.
•	 reputational risks.
•	 Finance and funding risks.
•	 health and safety related risks.
•	 risks to our corporate culture and 

employee engagement levels.
•	 data protection and information 

security risks.

in addition to the above, there are a 
number of inherent strategic risks within 
the Group that will always be prominent 
on our risk map, such as major fraud and 
the risk of ineffective governance.

the table on the next page outlines these 
risks in more detail and comments upon 
the major risk mitigation arrangements 
currently in place:

- No. 17 position on uKCSI

- 41% operating margin

- No.1 in dolphin Index for Innovation

- 97% employee satisfaction
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Risk Area Comments and risk mitigation

External political 
and policy 
environment 
including the 
Housing and 
Planning Bill and 
the election of a new 
London Mayor

the Board receives briefings on the external policy environment at each of its meetings with the development 
committee considering how emerging policies might impact upon plans to deliver new homes.

the impact of the various policy changes which include the 1% rent reductions, the extension of right to Buy to all 
tenants, pay to stay and further changes to the welfare system have been considered as the housing and planning 
Bill has emerged. immediate plans were made to reduce costs over the next 4 years to mitigate the impact of rent 
reductions.

now that the housing and planning Bill has received royal assent, the Board will consider the major areas of change 
during 2016/17, their likely impact upon the Group and take decisions accordingly.

the recently appointed new london Mayor has housing at the top of his agenda, with more affordable housing a key 
priority, the Group will seek to engage with local authority partners to play a full part in delivery over the next 5 years.

Asset related risks 
including those 
related to the 
extended Right to 
Buy for Housing 
Associations

the housing and planning act extends the right to Buy to all housing association tenants which could lead to a 
greater level of property sales than has previously been the case. the location of the Group’s properties in high value 
areas of london and the south East reduces the likely affordability of this scheme to our tenants and means that the 
increase in sales is expected to be relatively low. uptake in the pilot schemes, which have been running since January 
2016, has also been lower than expected which illustrates the affordability and funding constraints for individuals. as 
the detailed conditions of the scheme are introduced, the Board will consider the likely impact and will run further 
sensitivity analysis on its business plan.

we have developed an “assets and liabilities data room” and an asset appraisal Model which supports the effective 
management of our property assets. these link through to our asset management database which drives our 5 year 
investment programmes. these tools will be useful when determining how the Group might seek to derive benefit 
from the de-regulatory measures contained within the housing and planning act to enhance our ability to provide 
new affordable homes. any changes will be considered having given full consideration to the proposals and having 
sought appropriate legal and professional advice.

Income related risks 
including those 
associated with the 4 
year rent reductions 
and the universal 
credit system.

the 1% per year rent reductions over the next 4 years, which were announced by the chancellor in July 2015, will 
lead to rhp receiving £14.5 million less income than it had been expecting. this, coupled with the greater cashflow 
uncertainty resulting from payment of universal credit directly to tenants,means that a focus on cost reduction and 
liquidity management is of great importance to the Group.

the Board has agreed cost reduction targets which will mitigate the reduction in income. these target a minimum 
15% reduction in operating costs per property over the next 4 years and a reduction in planned capital expenditure of 
over £9 million over the same period.

a robust process of cashflow forecasting is in place which covers the short, medium and long term in order that 
liquidity requirements can be actively managed. our treasury management policy requires cash or available loan 
facilities to be in place 2 years in advance of anticipated need with cashflow forecasts being reported monthly to the 
Executive Group and quarterly to the Board.

over 30% of our tenants pay their rent by direct debit and we plan to increase this to 60% by the end of 2016/17 in 
order to increase the predictability of income flows into our business. we are also seeking to contact those tenants 
who are currently in receipt of full housing benefit in order to ensure that they are in a position to pay by direct debit 
at the point that they begin to receive universal credit directly.

Cost related risks 
including pension 
costs, differential 
inflation rates 
between costs 
and income 
and escalating 
development costs.

in light of the 1% rent reductions over the next 4 years, there is a real risk that our operating costs rise faster than our 
income, thus reducing our operating margins and our subsequent capacity to develop new homes.

the Board has set a target to reduce operating costs per property by 15% over the next 4 years through the 
introduction of a new service model called rhpi, more effective procurement activities and a refocus on core housing 
activities. a risk exists that these targets are not achieved and so progress will be reported regularly to the Board 
through key performance indicators and management accounts.

the Group elected to close the lGps defined benefit pension scheme to future accrual with effect from 1 april 2016 
using its office building as security in order to most effectively manage the scheme deficit in future years and the 
Group’s liability in this regard.

a carE (career average related earnings) scheme within shps (social housing pension scheme) is still open to 
existing and new employees with employer contribution levels capped at 9.5%. the scheme is currently in deficit and 
the Board has agreed to review its pension strategy every 3 years, or sooner, as required.

costs of construction of new homes have continued to increase over the last 12 months and we have taken steps to 
mitigate this increase through the use of collaborative procurement framework agreements and will continue to 
explore the use of off-site manufacture of homes and a micro-home product as potential solutions to this problem 
during the coming year.
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Reputational 
risk including 
those associated 
with the pilot of 
a new operating 
model, failure of 
a development 
scheme, or poorly 
managed stock 
investment 
programmes.

a significant health and safety failure, failure of a development scheme or adverse publicity regarding our new 
service offer could cause reputational damage to the rhp Group.

as reported below, health and safety activities are managed very closely with assurance provided to the Executive 
Group and Board through a range of measures.

our development programme is managed by a skilled in-house team with the support of technical advisors as 
required. procurement of contractors and consultants is robust and our internal audit programme covers an aspect 
of our development function each year. progress with our development programme is reported to our Executive 
Group monthly and our development committee and Board on a quarterly basis.

we have put in place a robust project management process to be used for the management of stock investment 
programmes; this includes appropriate customer engagement considerations. 

we anticipate that 300 new customers will receive our new service offer, rhpi, during 2016/17 and we will be collecting 
a range of performance metrics on a weekly basis in order to monitor performance. performance will be shared with the 
Board and our stakeholders as the pilot proceeds in order that any changes required are made quickly.

Finance and funding 
risks including those 
associated with 
breaches of funder 
covenants.

Failure to comply with banking covenants for existing debt and an inability to be able to secure new funding well in 
advance of need are key risks for the Group.

our restructured debt portfolio and high cash balances ensure that we have sufficient liquidity at low rates of 
interest to deliver our development ambitions through to 2019. a funding strategy for beyond 2019 will be developed 
during 2016/17 as part of the Group’s agreed treasury strategy.

our strong underlying credit rating and broader investor base now provide greater diversification of funding options 
for the organisation going forward.

compliance with funder covenants are closely monitored and are reported within the monthly management accounts.

the outcome of the Eu referendum is credit negative for the uK and the housing association sector. the Board will 
receive economic analysis following the outcome of the referendum and will take this into account as it develops its 
future funding strategy during 2016/17

Health and safety 
related risks.

we ensure the safety of our customers and our employees through a rigorous process of health and safety 
management and training.

we have a dedicated health and safety team in place which provides guidance and support to the Group. an employee 
health and safety committee meets quarterly with the Management team and Executive Group receiving a quarterly 
report, the risk committee receiving a report at each of its meetings and the Board receiving an annual report.

a comprehensive rolling cycle of statutory servicing takes place using appropriately accredited contractors with 
performance tracked through our performance reporting framework on a monthly basis.

our procurement processes ensure that all contractors demonstrate competence in health and safety practices 
before appointment.

our internal audit programme covers key areas each year where we have a duty of care to our customers including 
fire and gas safety, water testing, asbestos recording and handling, safety on construction sites and electrical safety.

Risks to our 
corporate culture 
and employee 
engagement levels.

we regularly test levels of employee engagement through an annual employee engagement survey and more 
frequent pulse checks. the results of these are then used to inform our activities aimed at protecting and enhancing 
our corporate culture and employee engagement levels.

our learning and development activities and approach to recruitment aim to develop talent internally with 
opportunities created to enable professional and personal development. 

the clear “golden thread” from our strategic goals, annual priorities and individual objectives ensures that all 
employees have a clear connection with what the organisation is trying to achieve. our individual and corporate 
bonus arrangement is clearly linked to achievement of both individual and corporate objectives.

Data protection and 
IT security risks.

regular third party penetration testing of our networks is performed and reported to the Group audit committee.

a framework of service level agreements is in place with key suppliers and system providers to ensure there is an 
appropriate response in the event of failure of any part of our network.

a robust business continuity plan is in place which is regularly tested.

regular training on data protection is provided to employees and managers with specific focus on those areas where 
personal customer and employee data is held. 
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hOW DiD We DO laSt year?

the year to 31 March 2016 was the third of our 5 year strategy and saw us continue to make excellent progress towards achieving the 
ambitious targets which were set in 2013. set out below is a summary of performance in each of the 4 key strategy areas for the year.

a) To be one of the best service providers in the country

Customer Satisfaction 2016 2015 Direction

UKCSI Score 75.6 73.7 ↑

Customers who think RHP is easy to do business with 74.4% 76.5% ↓

Tenant satisfaction 82.8% 82.3% ↑

Homeowner satisfaction 64% 67.3% ↓

% of very satisfied tenants 45.6% 47.2% ↓

% of very satisfied homeowners 20.7% 19.3% ↑

Current tenant rent arrears £79.0k 
increase

£12.2k 
reduction

↓

Empty home re-let time 14 days 15 days ↑

% Repairs done within target time 99.2% 99.3% ↓

% Repairs appointments booked online 78% 50% ↑

Outstanding gas safety inspections 0 1 ↑

during the year our core performance remained strong with targets met or exceeded in all areas except rent arrears and the 
proportion of our tenants telling us that they are very satified with our service. 

headline satisfaction levels remained strong during the year with our uKcsi score increasing and our position improving to 17 
with us being ranked first for the friendliness of our people. we are putting increasing emphasis on ensuring that rhp is easy to do 
business with. a key area of focus over the coming year will be on making changes to our service delivery mechanisms which make 
it even easier and faster for our customers to transact with us “anytime, anywhere and on any device”. 

significantly increasing the proportion of our tenants and leaseholders who are very satisfied with rhp continues to represent a 
challenge with the level for tenants falling slightly and the level for homeowners showing slight year-on-year improvement.

a key focus during the year was on getting a greater proportion of repairs booked online using our web and mobile sites and this 
proved successful as over 78% of all repair appointments were booked online by the end of the year, an increase from 50% at the 
start of the year. 

the launch of our new web and mobile site in March 2016 will facilitate continued improvments during the forthcoming year. 
the new site is focused upon service delivery rather than a corporate information platform as it is our belief that people will 
increasingly want to engage with rhp at a time and in a way which is convenient to them.

b) To be an excellent employer

Customer Satisfaction 2016 2015 Direction

Employee satisfaction 97% 97% ←→

% of very satisfied employees 71% 75% ↓

Average days lost due to sickness 1.03% 1.2% ↑

Voluntary staff turnover 9.9% 7.4% ↑

Number of customers into work and training 117 114 ↑
 
we have consolidated our position as an excellent employer during 2015/16 with 97% of our employees telling us that they were 
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satisfied with rhp as an employer and 71% saying that they were very satisfied. despite the slight fall in the proportion of our 
employees who are very satisfied, these are leading levels of employee engagement across any business in the uK and really 
contribute to us being able to deliver excellent levels of performance and customer service.

it was pleasing to be recognised as iip Gold Employer of the year in July 2015, the best medium sized workplace in the uK in the 
Great place to work awards in april 2016 and to achieve the no 1 position on the dolphin innovation index for housing associations, 
published in inside housing.

this positive culture within the organisation has contributed strongly to the effective response to the changes within our operating 
environment through the design and implementation of rhpi. 

in our 5 year strategy we recognised the impact that helping our customers into work and training would have both for them 
individually and us as a business as it protects and enhances the ability of our customers to pay their rent. it is therefore very 
pleasing that we have helped another 117 customers in this regard during the year. 

c) To build more good quality affordable homes

Customer Satisfaction 2016 2015 Direction

New homes completed during the year 58 97 N/A

No. of homes completed or in contract towards our 500 home target 273 173 ↑

our profile as a developing housing provider has continued to grow over the last 12 months with 58 new homes completed and the 
construction of a further 90 starting on site.

whilst the absolute number of homes completed fell year-on-year this is a function of the stage of the schemes within the 
development cycle and the number exceeded our target for the year.

we have successfully secured funding from the Gla to support the redevelopment of homes and improvement of green space in 
Butts Farm in hounslow. this scheme will replace 49 properties which are not suitable for letting with 99 new homes for affordable 
rent and shared ownership. this scheme is scheduled to begin in the summer of 2016.

we have continued to secure opportunities across our 3 core boroughs of richmond, Kingston and hounslow including a number of 
properties acquired through s106 arrangements which will create a pipeline of new affordable homes through to 2018 and beyond.

we continue to explore opportunities on land that we already own, with 27 of 58 new homes completed during the year and we have 
plans in place to deliver at least 31 more.

we also continue to work with the london Borough of richmond upon thames (lBrut) to explore the possibility of a regeneration 
scheme using rhp and council owned land in ham. this would replace the existing homes which were built in the 1960’s making 
best use of the land to provide high quality replacement housing and much needed additional affordable housing in the borough.

d) To manage our assets effectively

Customer Satisfaction 2016 2015 Direction

% Homes meeting Decent Home Standard 100% 100% ←→

Amount invested during the year on our existing homes £16.6m £16.2m ↑

No. of homes where cyclical decorations were completed 1,083 1,234 ↑

Number of extensions and conversions completed 12 6 ↑

we recognise that keeping our property assets well maintained will not only help to preserve their value and extend their life but 
also contribute to customer satisfaction levels. during the year we have invested £16.6m keeping our homes in a good state of 
repair, replacing components and making improvements to the external fabric of the properties.

our properties have a value of nearly £600m in their existing use of nearly £600m and these properties are used to secure debt 
which we used initially to acquire and invest in our existing homes and over the last 5 years has been focused on the development of 
new affordable homes.

we have rolling programmes of stock investment and cyclical decoration in place which are regularly communicated to customers. 
these programmes have helped to ensure that all of our homes continue to meet and exceed the decent homes standard.

during the year we have secured £508k of external grant funding from the Gla and lBrut which has allowed us to undertake 
extension works to 14 of our properties to alleviate overcrowding and at the year-end, 11 of these extensions had been completed.
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the Board is pleased to report very strong financial 
performance for the Group in the year to 31 March 2016.

the year to 31 March 2016 sees the introduction of the 
requirement for the Group to report its financial results under 
the new uK accounting framework as prescribed by Frs102. 

the results for the prior year to 31 March 2015 have been 
restated accordingly and the financial statements therefore 
include additional disclosures which aim to explain the 
changes.

Statement Of cOmprehenSive incOme

a surplus of £11.9m has been achieved which represents a 22% 
overall margin. rhp’s subsidiary, co-op homes (south) limited 
contributed £0.8m to this overall surplus.

underlying operating performance was strong with the 
operating surplus improving year-on-year by £1.6m to £21.7m 
and the operating margin of 41% (2015: 38%) represents the 
Group’s best result over the past 5 years.

our EBitda-Mri margin, which measures our profitability 
after taking into account major repairs expenditure, is 
an important financial measure and we achieved 37% of 
turnover demonstrating that the core business is performing 
strongly and can comfortably cover the level of investment 
required to keep our homes in good condition and invest in the 
development of new homes.

Group turnover from social housing lettings rose by £1.5m to 
£48.8m, largely due to increased rents and service charges 
reflecting growth in property numbers as newly developed 
properties are let and inflation linked rent increases in line 
with the rent standard set out by the hca, the social housing 
regulator. 

the operating surplus we have generated from these activities 
has increased by £2.6m to £21.4m with operating costs 
associated with social housing lettings reducing by £1.1m year-
on-year. 

at Group level, our operating costs fell by £0.3m reflecting a 
reduction in the cost of maintenance works to our properties. 
Management and service related costs were held as part of our 
focus on cost control.

at Group and company level, the operating cost per unit 
(excluding depreciation) of £3,372 and £3,702 respectively 
for the year compares favourably with averages for housing 
providers, although one of our key priorities over the coming 3 
years is to see year-on-year improvement through a reduction 
in core operating costs and an increase in the number of 
homes under management.

the level of interest payable by the Group increased by £2.4m 
reflecting the £140m bond issue which took place in February 
2015 which increased net debt levels of the Group by £80m. 

a reduction in the fair value of £0.7m (2015:£2.7m) associated 
with the £25m cancellable element of our dexia loan facility 

Board report | Financial review

-  £21.7m operating surplus
-  £12.7m total 

comprehensive  
income
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has been recognised in both the prior year and current year 
financial results as required by Frs102. this movement 
reflects the fact that prevailing interest rates are significantly 
lower than the fixed rate agreed on these loans.

the movement in the fair value of investment properties, 
which represents the proportion of our head office building 
which is commercially let as office accommodation to other 
organisations and our small portfolio of shops, will now be 
reflected within our statement of comprehensive income on 
an annual basis. the movement represents the uplift in value 
from historic cost at the point Frs102 was applied, and the 
value has not changed significantly over the last year.

we have accounted for our dexia loan (not including the 
cancellables) as basic financial instruments. this is on the 
basis that we consider any fixed rate debt with two-way early 
redemption indemnity clauses to be held for the long term as 
per treasury strategy and be non-speculative.

Statement Of financial pOSitiOn

our statement of financial position is strong which reflects 
sound long term investment decisions, the considered 
approach to growth in recent years, the focus on delivering 
excellent levels of core performance and the operation of a 
robust risk management framework.

the Group now owns and manages 7,910 homes with the value of 
the Group’s housing properties at historic cost increasing by £15m 
over the last year to £268m. £10.8m was spent on the development 
of new affordable housing with £9.6m invested in capital works to 
our existing properties. the estimated Existing use value for social 
housing (Euv-sh) of these homes is now nearly £0.6bn. 

our track record of strong financial and operational 
performance and our positive response to the external 
operating environment  has been reflected in our strong 

underlying credit rating with standard and poor’s and a top 
v1 viability rating with our regulator the hca. these ratings 
continue to provide endorsement of our approach to business 
and a great platform for us to plan ahead to deliver a greater 
programme of new homes over the coming years.

at the end of the year, the Group had cash balances of £69.8m 
of which £60.5m is deposited with various counterparties with 
deposits of no more than 95 days’ notice.

the Group had outstanding debt of £234m, a reduction of 
£14m over the year as some of our dexia facility was repaid 
as planned using proceeds from our bond issue. we have two 
fully secured undrawn revolving credit facilities totalling 
£40m which together with our available cash balances provide 
good liquidity levels with which to support our development 
aspirations through to 2018.

we have reviewed the value of our properties and fixed assets, 
and considered any changes in the economic environment, 
their projected income or any other influences which might 
affect their carrying value, and have processed any impairment 
charges through our income statement.

GrOup financial reSultS – 5 year 
Summary

the tables on the next page provide a 5 year summary of 
results for the rhp Group with the results for 2012-2014 being 
in accordance with old uK Gaap and those for 2015 and 2016 
being in accordance with Frs102. note 39 of the financial 
statements explain the adjustments made in converting to 
Frs102.

-  78% of repairs 
appointments booked 
online

-  14 days to re-let an 
empty home
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GrOup financial reSultS – 5 year Summary

Statement of comprehensive income (£’000) 2016 
FRS102

2015 
Restated 

FRS102

2014 
Old 

UK GAAP

2013 
Old 

UK GAAP

2012 
Old 

UK GAAP

turnover 53,496 52,806 47,967 45,201 41,700

operating costs and cost of sales (31,816) (32,748) (31,430) (28,478) (26,524)

Operating surplus 21,680 20,058 16,536 16,723 15,176

net interest charge (9,175) (7,196) (6,020) (6,272) (6,288)

Gain on sale of ppE/surplus on disposal of assets 101 220 179 189 26

Movements in fair value (668) 161 - - -

actuarial gain/ loss on pensions 731 (850) - - -

Total comprehensive income 12,669 12,393 10,586 10,528 8,916

Statement of financial position (£’000) 2016 
FRS102

2015 
Restated 

FRS102

2014 
Old 

UK GAAP

2013 
Old 

UK GAAP

2012 
Old 

UK GAAP

housing properties at cost less depreciation 267,710 252,392 227, 077 195,596 184,095

social housing and other grants - - (26,783) (23,297) (21,494)

investment properties, other tangible and 
intangible fixed assets

15,190 15,200 13,750 13,695 13,782

net current assets 46,950 61,527 7,586 9,017 8,093

Total assets less current liabilities 329,850 329,199 221,630 195,011 184,476

debt due after 1 year 251,391 262,773 164,228 148,246 148,230

provision for liabilities 3,147 2,772 - - -

net pension liability 3,850 4,781 3,359 3,818 3,019

Net assets 71,462 58,793 54,043 42,947 33,227

income & expenditure reserve 71,062 58,393 54,043 42,947 33,227

revaluation reserve 400 400 - - -

Total net assets 71,462 58,793 54,043 42,947 33,227

Key Financial Ratios

For the year ended 31 March 2016
2016 

FRS102

2015 
Restated 

FRS102

2014 
Old 

UK GAAP

2013 
Old 

UK GAAP

2012 
Old 

UK GAAP

operating Margin 41% 38% 34% 37% 36%

EBitda-Mri Margin 37% 43% 29% 31% 30%

surplus as % of turnover 22% 25% 22% 23% 21%

interest cover – excluding sales and disposals 229% 276% 346% 331% 306%

net gearing 59% 64% 58% 60% 65%

debt as a multiple of turnover 4.3 4.6 3.5 3.4 3.6
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Housing properties owned at year end:

total social housing stock owned at year end 
(number of dwellings) including 35 shared 
ownership properties (2015: 35)

7,130 7,087 7,013 6,979 6,963

leaseholder properties serviced 1,928 1,921 1,913 1,918 1,919

treaSury manaGement

our treasury Management activities at rhp focus upon ensuring that the Group has sufficient available liquidity to fund its 
operations for a minimum of 2 years, ensuring continued compliance with all loan covenants, managing the risk of adverse 
movements in interest rates and ensuring that any cash held is invested safely so that the capital is preserved. treasury 
management and policies are governed by the Group Finance committee (GFc).

during the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group’s total borrowing reduced from £248m to £235m, with cash balances also decreasing 
from £81m to £69.8m (£60.5m of the £69.8m cash is held in various short term deposit accounts with notices of 95 days or less).

during the year, £14m of our dexia facility was repaid using cash reserves in line with the loan repayment obligations with a further 
£16m due for repayment during 2016/17. 

we have also taken the opportunity to reduce the size of our revolving credit facilities (rcFs) to a total of £40m reducing the 
margins and commitment fees on both loans and extending the availability period on our lloyds facility.

the Group issued a £175m 33 year bond at a coupon of 3.25% through its wholly owned subsidiary rhp Finance plc in February 2015 
with £140m of bonds sold immediately at a discount of 99%, £35m continues to be retained for future issue.

Lender
Amount 

Drawn
Fair  

Value
Total  

Facility
Facility 

Expiry

listed bond (rhp Finance plc) £138.6m £127.6m £175m 2048

dexia £90m £95.9m £90m 2029

lloyds - £20m 2018

rBs - £20m 2018

total £228.6m £223.5m £305m

a summary of rhp’s loan portfolio is provided in the table above this shows the net proceeds received.

with a strong credit rating, long term funding from the capital markets and available shorter term credit facilities, rhp has a 
strong platform from which to deliver its service and development aspirations and to continue planning beyond 2018.

DeBt Structure anD availaBle liquiDity

DraWn DeBt Structure availaBle liquiDity

Bank 
DeBt 
£90m

tOtal 
caSh 

£69.8m

iSSueD 
BOnD 

£138.6m

rcf’S 
£40m
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DeBt repayment prOfile 

the weighted average duration of drawn 
debt across the Group is 21 years with 
the weighted average cost of drawn 
debt, inclusive of margins, being 4.08%.

the Group now has limited refinancing 
risk over the next 5 years with £31m of 
drawn bank debt requiring repayment 
which will be funded through cash 
balances raised from the 2015 bond issue.

the availability period of our existing 
revolving credit facilities expires during 
2018 and our 2016/17 treasury strategy 
will focus upon developing a funding 
strategy for 2018 and beyond.

Cash management
detailed 3 year rolling cashflow 
forecasts are prepared and reviewed 
each month, these are reviewed 
quarterly by our Group Finance 
committee and the Board. 

longer term forecasts are also prepared 
which are based upon our current 
Business plan and these are reviewed by 
the Board at least twice per year.

Counterparty risk
at 31 March 2016, all cash investments 
are held with counterparties who meet 
the criteria set out in our treasury 
Management policy which requires that 
the Group seek to minimise the risk of 
financial loss or liquidity exposure resulting 
from the insolvency of any counterparty.

counterparty risk from our 
development partners is actively 
monitored through checks with 
reputable agencies in addition to 
requiring various bonds and retentions 
depending on the contractor’s profile.

Currency risk
the Group borrows and lends in sterling 
and so is not exposed to currency risk.

Interest rate risk
the Group borrows from banks at both 
fixed and floating rates of interest with 
the levels agreed by the Board. at the 
year-end, 95% of the Group’s borrowings 
including the 2048 £138.6m bond were 
at fixed rates (2015: 96%).

BanK Bond

£250M

£200M

£150M

£100M

£50M

£0M
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the Group has not entered into any 
standalone interest rate swaps and so does 
not have any mark to market exposure.

the fixed rates of interest for rhp range 
from 2.13% to 6.2%, while the fixed rates for 
co-op homes range from 9.4% to 10.5%.

the dexia loan facility contains a total 
of £25m of cancellable fixed rate loans 
which are cancellable at the lender’s 
option, £15m is fixed at an interest rate 
of 3.36% with a further £10m being fixed 
at a rate of 2.49%.

under Frs102 these are classified as 
non-basic financial instruments and 
therefore need to be reflected at their 
fair value in the financial statements 
with year-on-year movements being 
reflected through the statement of 
comprehensive income. the next option 
dates for dexia are on 25 March 2019 for 
the £15m loan and 25 June 2016 for the 
£10m loan.

Intragroup loans
the net proceeds from the 2015 bond 
issue of £138.6m, issued on the london 
stock Exchange (lsE) were on-lent by 
rhp Finance plc to rhp under a loan 
agreement at a coupon of 3.25%. the 
bond has a par value of £140m and was 
issued with a discount at 99%

in addition, there is an inter-company loan 
between rhp and its subsidiary co-op 
homes. the interest rate on the loan is 
based on libor plus a margin which was 
agreed at the time of the loan and has a 
balance of £3.4m at 31 March 2016. co-op 
homes repaid £470k during the year, 
which was earlier than their business plan 
projections. the loan has a repayment 
date of 2031 but is due to be repaid by 
2022 according to current projections.

Loan covenant compliance
the Group’s loan covenants are based 
primarily on interest cover, asset cover and 
gearing ratios, based on social housing 
asset values and the historic cost of our 
homes on the balance sheet. covenants are 
monitored monthly and were comfortably 
met throughout the year and at the year-
end for all loan facilities.

Reporting on treasury activities 
the Board and Group Finance committee 
monitor treasury management and 
investment policy through a quarterly 
reporting cycle, together with interim 
reporting where risks emerge in between 
meetings. the treasury policy and strategy 
are reviewed annually but are reviewed 
more frequently when there are signs of a 
significant change in economic conditions.

caSh flOWS

cash inflows and outflows during the 
year are shown in the consolidated 
statement of cash flows (page 48). 
cash flow from operating activities 
increased this year to £31m (2015: £27m) 
with net capital expenditure of £22m 
being funded by cash from operating 
activities. a repayment of £14m of our 
dexia loan facility was made during the 
year in line with the agreed repayment 
schedule associated with this loan, this 
was funded through our available cash 
reserves.

penSiOn cOStS

the Group participates in two pension 
schemes: the social housing pension 
scheme (shps) and the london 
Borough of richmond pension 
Fund (lBrpF) for employees who 
transferred from the council under 
tupE arrangements. the lBrpF is a 
final salary scheme or defined benefits 
scheme (dB) , while shps offers a final 
salary scheme to employees who joined 
before 31 March 2007, a career average 
related Earnings (carE) scheme to 
employees joining after 31 March 2007, 
and a defined contribution scheme (dc) 
which is used for the purposes of auto- 
enrolment. the Group has contributed 
to the schemes in accordance with 
levels set by the actuaries. 

Employer contributions to the two 
shps schemes were between 2% and 
9.5% for the dc element of the scheme 
(depending on employee contributions) 
and 9.5% for the dB element. 

during the year, employer contributions 
to the lBrpF were 23.2%; however rhp 
closed lBrpF to new contributions 
from 31 March 2016.

during the year a decision was taken to 
close the lBrpF final salary scheme to 
future accrual with effect from 1 april 
2016 with a future deficit management 
plan agreed with the fund which 
prevented a termination debt arising 
upon the last active member ceasing to 
contribute to the scheme.

reServeS

the Board has reviewed the reserves of 
the Group, taking into consideration the 
nature of the income and expenditure 
streams, and has concluded that the 
level of reserves shown at 31 March 2016 
is commensurate with the performance 
and investment profile of a charitable 
housing provider.
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rhp has a good track record of 
achieving value for money (vFM). our 
financial performance levels continue 
to compare favourably with the majority 
of the social housing sector, we achieve 
consistently high levels of customer 
satisfaction, our core performance 
levels are good and we have a growing 
development programme.

we know that in order to achieve our 
objectives of providing leading levels 
of customer service and contributing 
more to the provision of new homes we 
must constantly look for new ways of 
delivering great services at a lower cost. 
over the last year we have developed 
plans that we are confident will enable 
us to achieve this, in particular the 
launch of a new online service model to 
new customers from april 2016.

the recently issued unit cost analysis 
by the hca indicates that our costs 
compare favourably with the rest 
of the housing sector, once the fact 
that we are based in london is taken 
into account. our future plans aim to 
improve this performance even further.

areas where we know we need to focus 
over the coming year(s) are reducing 
the unit cost of delivery of our new 
development programme, delivering our 
planned cost reductions in responsive 
maintenance and stock investment 
and realising the cost reductions 
anticipated through the launch of our 
new online service model.

we continue to improve the visibility 
and quality of the information we hold 
regarding our assets and their relative 
performance, we will be commencing 
a regeneration scheme during 2016/17 
and continue to make use of land that 
we already own to deliver new homes. 

during 2016/17 we plan to consider 
our approach to pay to stay and to the 
flexibilities provided to us through the 
housing and planning act with a view to 
enhancing the level of income we get on 
certain of our assets which will support 
us to develop additional affordable 
homes in the future.

during 2015/16 our score, and absolute 
position improved in the uKcsi, non-

food retail category, our customers 
think that rhp is easy to do business 
with, satisfaction with repairs and 
caretaking services remains high. we 
are confident that customers who 
engage with us predominantly online 
will be more satisfied with us than those 
who engage with us in the traditional 
way. we have developed our online 
service model for the majority of our 
new customers and we will be closely 
tracking relative levels of satisfaction 
and the ease of doing business with us 
during 2016/17.

we feel that there is significant social 
value in our focus on enabling our 
customers to be comfortable engaging 
with us online and plan to continue our 
focus on getting more of our customers 
engaging with us online during 2016/17.

we recognise that great levels of 
performance can only be delivered 
through an engaged workforce and have 
again achieved sector leading levels of 
employee engagement and external 
recognition in this regard during 
2015/16. 

we recognise that during a period of 
significant business change we will 
need to be mindful of the risk of adverse 
impacts upon the levels of positive 
engagement and will be taking steps 
to stay in touch with our workforce 
to understand any concerns or ideas 
they have, in this way we can respond 
accordingly.

the graphic below illustrates the 
Board agreed direction of travel for 
performance and cost, when compared 
to our benchmark peers:

2016

2020

2013

Board report | value For Money
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Key to the Board’s understanding of 
whether rhp is achieving vFM, is that 
it understands relative performance 
on costs, satisfaction levels, and 
core operational performance. this 
needs to be done over a period of 
time in order that the effectiveness 
of decisions that are being taken by 
the Board and Management can be 
evaluated and demonstrated. our 
performance management strategy 
includes comparison of our headline 
brand performance with the best of 
the wider business community in the 
uK, particularly overall customer 
satisfaction and Employee Engagement 
levels.

the strategy also includes comparison 
with our peers on individual service 
performance and relative costs using 
housemark. our peer group consists 
of 22 housing providers in london and 
the south East with between 6,000 and 
34,000 homes under management. in 
the current year we have also compared 
our performance on unit-costs with the 
wider housing sector using the hca 
published unit cost analysis.

we have made a conscious choice 
to push the boundaries in delivering 
excellence, and we know this will not 
necessarily always be at the lowest 
cost, however we are confident that 
the initiatives we are focusing upon 
will succeed in ensuring we are “Better, 
Faster and lower cost”. 

the table over the page provides a 
summary of a number of headline 
measures which illustrate our current 
performance compared to our selected 
comparator groups. Benchmark 
performance levels for customer 
satisfaction and other core performance 
areas are for 2014/15 unless otherwise 
stated as these are the most recent for 
which there is robust benchmark data.

Completed 58 
new affordable 
homes

Invested 
£17.1m into 
existing 
homes in 
2015/16

117 
customers 
into work or 
training
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hOW DOeS Our cOre perfOrmance cOmpare?

Performance 
Area Measure 

Selected 
Peer Group

RHP 
Performance 
level for 15/16 

Median level 
for 2014/15 
Benchmark

External Accreditation/
Validation

customer 
satisfaction

uK customer service index
uK non-food retail 
companies

75.6
65.8 (average for 
housing associations 
in 15/16)

Best service provider (not for profit) 
uK customer exerpiance awards.

% tenants very satisfied 
with the service provided 
by rhp

housemark star 
report

45.6% 42%
ranked number 1 for innovation in 
inside housing’s innovation index.

% tenants satisfied with 
repairs and maintenance

housemark peer 
group

83.7% 76.6%

% tenants satisfied with our 
caretaking service

housemark peer 
group

85.4% 79.7%

Employee 
Engagement

% Employees satisfied with 
rhp as an employer

housemark peer 
group (27 other 
housing providers)

97% 81.5%

iip Gold Employer of the year 2015

Best workplace – Medium (Great 
place to work awards) 2016

asset 
Management

% properties meeting the 
decent homes standard

housemark  
peer group

100% 100%

% repairs completed within 
target

99%
no avalible 
benchmark data

number of days to re-let an 
empty home

14 days 26 days

no. of properties with valid 
gas safety certificates

100% 100%

arrears 
Management

arrears as % of rent debit
housemark  
peer group

2.8% 2.02%

  
 

the above summary table illustrates that we compare favourably with our comparator groups across all areas, with the exception of arrears.

levels of customer satisfaction, core 
performance and employee engagement 
are above benchmark median levels in 
all cases and top quartile performance 
levels in many cases. 

whilst it is clear that our original 
strategy has been successful we know 
that there are areas where we need to 
work harder to generate the value that 
we aspire to achieve. Below are the 
areas where we are focusing additional 
effort in the year ahead:

SatiSfactiOn 
we found it challenging over the last 
year to improve the proportion of very 
satisfied customers despite our core 

service level performance continuing 
to improve in most areas and we saw a 
slight fall over the year from 47.2% to 
45.6%. satisfaction with our key service 
areas repairs and caretaking, however, 
continues to be very strong at well over 
80% for both services which compares 
very favourably with our peers.

as an organisation which has a large 
number of homeowners, whilst it is 
pleasing that 64% of homeowners were 
satisfied with rhp, it was disappointing 
that this had fallen from 67.4% in the 
prior year. until this year homeowner 
satisfaction has been progressively 
increasing from 57.1% at the end of 
2009/10.

there are more organisations now 
realising that a focus on customer 
service can deliver real business benefit 
and are thus opting to participate in the 
uKcsi. our goal to break into the top 10 
of this index is therefore getting ever 
more challenging and, it is therefore 
gratifying that during the year we 
improved our uKcsi score from 73.7 
to 75.6 and our relative position from 
number 21 to number 17.

in common with many of the best 
service providers in the uK we are 
increasingly focusing upon making it 
easier for our customers to do business 
with us and are now actively measuring 
this through our customer surveys. over 
the last year we saw a small decline 
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from 76.5% to 74.7% in the proportion of 
our customers who felt that rhp is easy 
to do business with. we will therefore 
be focusing upon activities which will 
improve this score during 2016/17 and 
have set ourselves some challenging 
targets. 

•	 rolling out our new rhpi service to 
most of our new customers during 
the year, which is likely to amount 
to over 300, this includes use of an 
e-tenancy agreement, a full online 
service including rent payment, repair 
appointment booking, web chat, online 
employment advice and support, and 
our new e-communities module.

•	 resolving 65% of customer queries 
within 4 hours.

•	 increasing the proportion of our 
customers having an online account 
with rhp from 35% to 95%.

•	 increasing the proportion of repair 
appointments being booked online 
from 78% to 90%.

•	 increasing the proportion of tenants 
paying their rent by direct debit to 
60% from the current level of 30%.

cOre perfOrmance

our core services have again performed 
excellently compared to benchmarks with 
re-lets of general needs homes occurring 
in 14 days, 99% of repairs being completed 
within target and all properties having a 
valid gas safety certificate.

areas where performance did not fully 
meet our expectations were as follows:

•	 our level of current tenant rent arrears 
increased in real terms by £79k.

•	 the speed of securing sites upon 
which to develop new homes in 
richmond, Kingston, and hounslow 
has been slower than we had hoped.

•	 we continue to find letting some 
of our retirement housing stock 
challenging which results in longer 
re-let times than we achieve for our 
general needs housing.

we have again set clear performance 
targets for all areas of core 
performance which we believe strike 
the appropriate balance between being 
realistic and yet stretching for the 
organisation.

hOW DO Our cOStS cOmpare

Each year the hca publishes the 
Global accounts of the whole housing 
association sector, this enables 
accurate comparison to be undertaken 
of financial performance and costs with 
averages for the whole sector. in early 
June 2016 this was supplemented by 
analysis received directly from the hca 
which focused upon the unit costs of 
housing associations.

the table on the next page summarises 
the performance of rhp compared with 
the entire housing sector for the period 
to 31 March 2015 which is the most up-
to-date information available. we have 
also provided the relevant metrics for 
our financial performance to 31 March 
2016 in order that information is as up to 
date as possible.

agreement to invest 
£250m in building new 
affordable homes 
over the next 8 years
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the above table demonstrates that rhp 
performs very well when compared to 
the wider housing association sector 
from a financial perspective with 
margins significantly higher than the 
median level. the effective interest 
rate on our loans is also significantly 
lower than the average for the sector. 
the only area where we demonstrate 
performance which is not better than 
the average for the sector is in the area 
of debt to turnover, although it should 
be noted that this ratio ignores the fact 
that rhp is currently holding over £60m 
of cash on its balance sheet following a 
bond issue in 2015. if this cash is taken 
into account our net debt to turnover 
ratio for 2016 falls to 3.3 times. 

recent hca analysis of the unit costs 
of housing providers was released in 
early June 2016. this analysis sought 
to gain a greater understanding of cost 
variations across the housing sector and 
took into account operating costs as well 
as the cost associated with maintaining 
and improving existing social housing 
properties. the analysis sought to 
understand whether there were any 
specific cost drivers which were relevant 
to individual providers whether that be 
their location, size or type of activity that 
they were involved in. 

For rhp, the analysis concluded that 
it was our location in london which 
would have the greatest impact upon 
our costs relative to the average for 
the whole sector. the report shows 
that providers in london have costs 
of £1,900 per unit above those in the 
north East. in order to address this in 
comparison, a 24% cost adjustment was 
applied to our costs when calculating 
cost per property in the analysis above. 
this 24% adjustment factor equates to 
the difference in average regional and 
administrative and construction wages 
and has been proposed as a proxy for 
us to apply. once this cost adjustment 
is applied to our unit cost per property 
measure, our costs are significantly 
better than the average for the sector 
and equate to top quartile performance. 
the increase in cost per property in 
2016 relates to a £2m increase in stock 
investment work relating to extension 
work on 14 properties and planned 
roofing replacements. core operating 
costs were held year on year

our budget for 2016/17 targets a reduction 
in costs of £1.4m in management and 
maintenance costs and of £1.1m in major 
repairs and stock investment spend. 

we expect this to have the effect of 
reducing our headline social housing 
cost to £3,690 per property, reducing 
to £2,982 per property after the 
london cost adjustment is applied. we 
expect this to represent top quartile 
performance and our plans are to 
reduce this further over the coming 3 
years as the impact of rolling out our 
new online service offer to additional 
customers takes effect. 

in addition to the sector level 
benchmarking of costs, we have also 
undertaken benchmarking with a peer 
group of 28 organisation who operate 
in london and the south East. over 
the past 3 years our focus has been 
on reducing our costs from a position 
where they were more than 10% above 
the median to a position where they 
were lower than median levels. the 
most recent benchmarking results 
for 2014/15 are shown below which 
illustrates that with the exception 
of Estate services, our unit cost 
per property is now better than the 
benchmark level.

RHP PERFORMANCE 
2016 

RHP PERFORMANCE 
2015

HCA GLOBAL 
ACCOUNTS 2015

operating margin 41% 38% 28.3%

net margin 21.6% 25.2% 18.5%

Effective interest rate 4.07% 4.12% 4.7%

debt to turnover 4.3 times 4.6 times 3.9 times

EBitda-Mri interest cover 229% 276% 156%

social housing cost per unit £3,988 per property 

£3,216 per property 
(after reducing for london 

cost weighting)

£3,790 per property 

£3,056 per property 
(after reducing for london 

cost weighting)

£3,550 per property

Business area 2014/15 RHP cost 
per property

2014/15 benchmark 
cost per property 

(median)

responsive maintenance and void works £799 £895

Major works and cyclical maintenance £1,545 £1,619

Management £436 £466

Estate services £367 £216

overheads £172 £208
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our performance during 2015/16 and our 
budget targets for 2016/17 which have 
been referenced above will enable us to 
further reduce our costs per property. 
over the last year we have seen a £113 
per property reduction in our Estate 
services function. the number of 
caretakers will not increase as we take 
on more properties either through stock 
acquisition or through new development 
and so we expect the cost per property 
of Estate services to continue to 
reduce. customer satisfaction with 
the caretaking service continues to be 
high at 83.8% and we know that this is a 
service that our customers value highly. 
however, we will be targeting efficiencies 
in this area in the same way as we are 
across the rest of the business.

Our apprOach tO GettinG the 
mOSt frOm Our aSSet BaSe

we operate in the london Boroughs 
of richmond, Kingston and hounslow, 
where property values are high and 
there is an acute shortage of sites 
where we can build new homes. we 
therefore recognise our responsibility 
to ensure we are making best use of the 
assets we have. one of our 4 key goals 
within our 5 year strategy is to manage 
our assets effectively. with this in mind, 
rhp has developed a comprehensive 
asset management strategy which is 
reviewed and updated annually. the key 
questions that we are seeking to answer 
through our approach is should we hold, 
sell, refurbish or redevelop in order to 
make the best contribution to achieving 
our corporate vision.

the location of our properties and the 
degree of property price inflation over 
the last 15 years means that there is 
a significant difference between the 
estimated open market value of our 
properties of over £2bn and their value 
in their existing use of circa £600m. 
similarly the differential between market 
rents and social rents is significant across 

all of our operating area. there is potential 
to release some of this latent value to 
support provision of new affordable 
housing in the future. this ability has been 
constrained in the past but opportunities 
might emerge through the de-regulatory 
measures being introduced as part of the 
housing and planning act.

in our 2014/15 value for Money self- 
assessment we set out our key priorities 
for 2015/16 to ensure that rhp focused 
upon best use of physical assets and 
growth. progress on these and other 
relevant areas is outlined below:

•	 we have completed 58 new homes 
during the year. this includes new 
homes on rhp owned landholdings 
and we have identified potential for 
a further 31 homes on rhp land.

•	 we have re-let 370 homes during 
the year turning round our general 
needs properties in an average of 14 
days, of these homes 101 have been 
let at affordable rent and 269 at 
social rent under the terms of our 
agreement with the Gla.

•	 we achieved planning permission 
for, and secured over £4m of Gla 
grant, for the redevelopment of 
our 49 properties in Fountains 
close, providing 99 new homes. the 
scheme is scheduled to begin in 
June 2016.

•	 our retirement housing review 
process has identified 2 schemes 
which would benefit from inclusion 
in our forward development 
programme as they provide 
opportunity for additional 
affordable homes on the sites and 
their location is not ideally suited to 
retirement housing provision.

•	 we have commenced community 
consultation regarding 
redevelopment of one of our 
retirement housing schemes with 
the scheme being re-provided 
as a retirement housing village 
consisting of 21 homes for rent and 
shared ownership.

•	 we have concluded the review of 
our pension arrangements and have 
closed the lGps defined benefit 
scheme to future accrual. we have 
put in place a deficit management 
arrangement using our office 
building as security to most 
effectively manage future deficit 
contributions.

•	 we have continued to explore the 
possibility of a regeneration scheme 
at ham close with the local council 
where we own 192 properties. this 
regeneration scheme would improve 
the standard of the properties, make 
better use of the land holding for 
provision of housing, improve the 
green space and contribute to the 
uplift of the wider area. Further 
consultation with customers and 
the wider community is planned for 
later in 2016.

•	 we continue to try to source new 
funding to enable us to progress 
thermal efficiency programmes.

•	 we have released excess security 
from our dexia loan facility during 
the year and plan to release excess 
security held against our revolving 
credit facilities during 2016/17.

our ability to utilise our property assets 
in alternative tenures to generate 
additional returns has to date been 
extremely limited because of our 
stock transfer origins and the focus 
of our development programme on 
the provision of affordable rented 
properties. 

as a consequence, our focus has 
been on ensuring that the margins 
we achieve on general needs renting 
activities and the profits achieved 
on sales of first tranches of shared 
ownership properties are maximised 
through control of costs. the table 
below summarises the returns achieved 
for 2015/16 and compares these to 
2014/15. 

Portfolio 
(RHP Only) EUV-SH Rental Income

Gross Yield on 
EUV-SH

Operating 
Margin 2016

Operating 
Margin 2015

affordable rent 38,930 3,748 9.6%
43.60% 40.50%

other general needs and key workers 491,420 38,735 7.9%

housing for older people 29,490 3,837 13.0% 36.0% 31.3%
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over the last 12 months we have used our 
newly developed asset appraisal tool to 
identify properties within our portfolio 
which would benefit from more detailed 
examination and option appraisal. our 
initial review identified 32 properties 
which, whilst not scoring poorly, scored 
less well overall than the wider portfolio. 
these scores could have been due to the 
assessment of open market value, future 
stock investment requirements, whether 
they were listed, historic ease of letting, 
a block where there is a high proportion 
of leaseholders or a combination of these 
factors. a further 25 properties were 
identified which were high value street 
properties which have significant future 
major repair costs forecast and 26 high 
value street properties which have low 
future maintenance costs. a selection of 
these properties are currently undergoing 
a more detailed option appraisal process 
to determine the most appropriate future 
use of these properties. 

the de-regulatory measures and 
the option to introduce a pay to stay 
scheme which was included in the 
housing and planning act might provide 
opportunities for us to manage our 
assets in a more flexible way in the 
future. this could enable us to generate 
additional income through which to 
support delivery of new affordable 
homes. we plan to explore these options 
and opportunities further over the 
coming year. 

During 2016/17 we plan to:
•	 complete 85 new homes with 55 for 

affordable rent and 30 for shared 
ownership.

•	 commence the redevelopment of 99 
new homes at Fountains close.

•	 Enter contracts for the delivery of 
150 additional new homes.

•	 secure a site and begin delivery of a 
new micro-product for rent.

•	 decide on our approach to the pay to 
stay option which is included within 
the housing and planning act which 
could generate additional income to 
provide new affordable homes.

•	 have re-let approximately 300 homes 
on 5 year fixed term tenancies under 
our new service offer, rhpi. this will 
take to 730 the number of fixed term 
tenancies within our portfolio which 
provides us with a greater degree 

of future asset management and 
rehousing flexibility.

•	 work with our residents and 
partners to agree a long term vision 
for the future of ham close. we will 
complete the consultation process 
with a decision being made by the 
Board by the end of 2016.

•	 Further develop our asset appraisal 
tool, completing the option 
appraisal process on the initial 
sample of properties. this tool will 
support the work planned above to 
explore the opportunities arising 
out of the de-regulatory measures 
contained within the housing and 
planning act.

•	 approve and implement a stock 
disposals policy and strategy.

•	 release excess property security 
from our revolving credit facilities 
into our security trust arrangement 
enabling use to support future 
funding as required.

Each year rhp produces a vFM self- 
assessment and publishes this on its 
website www.rhp.org.uk at the same 
time as these accounts.

GOvernance & reGulatiOn

the rhp Group is proud of its 
commitment to good governance. 
the role of the rhp Board, which is 
our ultimate governing body, is to set 
the overall aims and objectives of the 
rhp Group and to ensure that rhp 
and its subsidiaries are meeting these 
and keeping within their legal and 
moral obligations. the Board is also 
responsible for ensuring the financial 
wellbeing of the Group.

co-op homes (south) limited is a 
subsidiary of rhp. rhp has the right to 
appoint members to the Board of co-op 
homes and thereby exercises control 
over it as a subsidiary.

rhp Finance plc is a 100% owned 
subsidiary of rhp and was incorporated in 
november 2014 for the purpose of raising 
funds for the Group from the capital 
markets through an own name bond issue. 
the 4 directors of rhp Finance plc were 
appointed by the Board of rhp and consist 
of 2 rhp non-Executive directors, the 
Group chief Executive and the Executive 
director of Finance.

the detailed arrangements by which 
rhp exercises control and oversight of 
co-op homes and rhp Finance plc is 
set out in the Group Management and 
control Framework which has been 
adopted by both the Boards of rhp and 
co-op homes. this framework covers 
governance controls, operational 
controls, financial controls and Group 
internal controls.

through a quarterly meeting cycle, the 
work of the rhp Board is supported 
by committees (which also meet four 
times per year, apart from Governance 
& remuneration which meets at least 
twice a year), a structure which allows 
in-depth scrutiny of important strategic 
issues. the committees are:

•	 service delivery committee (sdc).
•	 Group audit committee (Gac).
•	 Group Finance committee (GFc).
•	 Governance & remuneration 

committee (G&rc).
•	 development committee (dc).

The Executive Group and 
Management Team
the rhp Group is managed by an 
Executive Group, comprising the chief 
Executive, the Executive director of 
Finance, Executive director of customer 
service and the Executive director of 
corporate services.

the Executive Group is supported by 
a Management team which consists 
of the director of property services, 
director of housing services, head of 
Finance and the head of hr.

these groups meet regularly to review 
performance and delivery of the Group’s 
objectives.

For salary disclosure purposes, the chief 
Executive and Executive directors are 
referred to as directors; however, with 
the exception of the chief Executive who 
is a Board member, they are not regarded 
as directors for legal purposes.

Code of Governance
during the year the Governance and 
remuneration committee carried out of 
a review of our governance arrangements 
and assessed its compliance with the 
national housing Federation (nhF) code 
of Governance (2010). 
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the committee reported to the full 
Board, which is pleased to confirm full 
compliance with the code. during the 
coming year the Board agreed to adopt 
the nhF 2015 code of Governance with 
effect from april 2016. 

during the year the Board of co-op 
homes (south) limited carried out a 
review of its governance arrangements 
and assessed its compliance with the 
national housing Federation (nhF) 
code of Governance (2010). the Board 
agreed to adopt the nhF 2015 code of 
Governance on 3 March 2016. the Board 
confirms compliance with the code.

Anti-Fraud, Money Laundering and 
Anti-Bribery
the Board has confirmed its zero 
tolerance policy to fraud, bribery, 
money laundering or corruption of any 
kind. the Group continually reviews 
its anti-Fraud and Bribery policy and 
carries out training sessions to ensure 
a culture of fraud, bribery and money 
laundering risk awareness is in place 
in the organisation, and that employee 
responsibilities are clear.

a fraud register is maintained and is 
reviewed by the Group audit committee 
on a quarterly basis. any fraud or 
attempted fraud is reviewed according 
to the Group’s anti-Fraud and Bribery 
policy and reported to Group audit 
committee and subsequently to the 
Board, with plans and actions for areas 
sensitive to the fraud. there were no 
incidents to report in 2015/16.

Internal Controls Assurance
the Board has overall responsibility 
for the system of internal control and 
risk management across the Group 
and for reviewing its effectiveness. the 
Group audit committee is responsible 
on behalf of the Board for monitoring 
this system and reporting on its 
effectiveness.

the system of internal control is 
designed to manage, rather than 
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives. it can only provide 
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or loss.

Key elements of the Group’s internal 
control framework include:
•	 Board approved terms of reference 

and delegated authorities for Group 
audit, Group Finance, development, 
Governance & remuneration and 
service delivery committees.

•	 there are clearly defined 
management responsibilities for 
the identification, evaluation and 
control of significant risks. the 
executive directors regularly consider 
reports on these risks and the chief 
Executive is responsible for reporting 
to the Board any significant changes 
affecting key risks.

the framework is made up of:

•	 internal audit assurance: the 
Group’s internal audit function is 
delivered through a specialist third 
party organisation which has a 
direct reporting line to the Group 
audit committee. the internal audit 
programme is designed to review 
key areas of risk.

•	 the work of the external auditor 
provides further independent 
assurance of the internal control 
environment, as described in their 
audit report. the Group also received 
a key issues memorandum which 
identifies any internal control 
weaknesses. the Board and the 
Group audit committee consider this 
memorandum.

•	 robust strategic and business planning 
processes, with detailed financial 
budgets and forecasts. these are 
reviewed and approved by the Board 
and actual performance versus budget/
forecast is monitored throughout the 
year by the executive directors and the 
Group Finance committee.

•	 regular reporting to the executive 
directors, the Group Finance 
committee and the service delivery 
committee on key performance 
indicators to assess progress 
towards the achievement of key 
business objectives, targets and 
outcomes. these reports and the 
outcomes of these reviews are 
reported to the Board at each 
meeting throughout the year.

•	 Formal recruitment, retention, 
training and development policies 
for all employees.

•	 Established authorisation and 
appraisal procedures for all significant 
new initiatives and commitments.

•	 a treasury Management policy, 
which is subject to external review 
on an annual basis.

•	 a Board approved whistle-blowing 
policy.

•	 a Board approved anti-Fraud, anti- 
Bribery and anti-Money laundering 
policy, covering prevention, 
detection and reporting of fraud, 
and the recovery of assets.

•	 policies on payments & expenses to 
employees and Board members.

the Board cannot delegate ultimate 
responsibility for the system of internal 
control, but it can and has delegated 
authority to the Group audit committee 
to regularly review the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control. the Board 
receives quarterly reports from the Group 
audit committee together with minutes 
of Group audit committee meetings.

the Group audit committee and Board 
have received the chief Executive’s 
annual review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control for the 
Group, and the annual report of the 
internal auditor. in their annual report, 
the internal auditors confirmed that 
the Group’s systems of internal control 
continue to demonstrate the existence of 
a strong internal control environment.

the Board has reviewed the 
effectiveness of the system of internal 
control, including risk management, 
for the year to 31 March 2016 and up 
to the date of signing these financial 
statements, it has not identified any 
weaknesses sufficient to cause material 
misstatement or loss which require 
disclosure in the financial statements. 

there were no instances of fraud which 
resulted in loss to the Group during the year.

during the year, the Board has taken 
steps to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the Governance and 
viability standard as issued by our 
regulator, the hca. during the year 
the Board has undertaken stress and 
scenario testing on the organisation’s 
business plan, has reviewed progress 
with the development of an assets and 
liabilities register and has formally 
reviewed compliance against the 
regulatory framework. 
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DC GFC
G&RC 

(2 per year) GAC SDC Board
RHP 

Finance Plc

suzanne avery ü ü 2/3

ursula wyman ü ü 1/3

nigel taylor ü ü 2/3

ian nunn ü ü ü 3/3

toby d’olier ü ü 3/4

cll stephen speak ü ü chair 3/4 ü

John newbury ü ü ü ü chair ü

Juliet oram ü 0/1

peter Marsh chair chair ü 4/4

catriona simons ü ü 1/1

david done ü ü ü ü 4/4 chair

angelika chaffey ü ü chair 4/4

Malcom levi ü chair ü 3/4

ü donates membership

dc development committee Gac Group audit committee

GFc Group Finance committee sdc service delivery committee

G&rc Governance & remuneration committee 

Contracts of employment
the chief Executive and other executive 
directors are employed on the same 
terms as other employees and all have 
notice periods of six months.

there is a Governance and 
remuneration committee consisting 
of five Board members, including the 
chair and deputy chair of the Board. its 
role is to determine a comprehensive 
remuneration policy for the rhp Group 
that is appropriate to its needs and 
objectives, to set the chief Executive’s 
remuneration package and to oversee 
those of the other executive directors.

when determining the remuneration 
levels of the executive directors the 
committee pays close attention to 

terms and conditions in the sector. Basic 
salaries are set with regard to each 
executive director’s responsibilities and 
pay levels for comparable positions. 
at the end of each year, the executive 
directors are eligible for a bonus of up 
to 10% of their salary depending upon 
an assessment of both their individual, 
and the company’s performance. Full 
details of the remuneration paid to 
each executive director during the year 
are included in note 10 of the audited 
financial statements.

Pensions
Except for the chief Executive, the 
executive directors are members of 
the social housing pension scheme, a 
defined benefit pension scheme. the 
chief Executive was a member of the 
london Borough of richmond pension 
Fund, a defined benefit final salary 
pension scheme, until its closure to 
future accrual on 31 March 2016. 

From this date the chief Executive 
joined the social housing pension 
scheme. the executive directors 
participate in the schemes on the same 
terms as all other eligible employees. 
the Group contributes to the schemes 
on behalf of its employees.

Board members and executive directors
the present Board members and the 
executive directors of the association 
are set out on page 2.

the Board members are drawn from a wide 
background bringing together professional, 
commercial and local experience. our 
Board is committed to rhp’s culture, ethos, 
values and objectives.

the Board comprises of up to 12 
members, including the chief Executive 

and any co-optees, with all members 
selected based upon the skills and 
experience that they can contribute. as 
at 31 March 2016 the Board consisted of 
11 members.

one executive director, the chief 
Executive, david done, is also a Board 
member. the policy for selecting 
and appointing Board members and 
for admitting new shareholders is 
contained within rhp’s standing 
orders and delegated authority policy, 

recruitment and selection of Board 
Members policy, and shareholder 
Membership policy.

the Group has insurance policies that 
indemnify its Board members and 
executive directors against liability when 
acting for the Group.

the table below provides details of the 
remuneration and meeting attendance 
of the Group Board during the year to 31 
March 2016:
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the Board is responsible for preparing 
the report and financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and 
regulations.

the co-operative and community 
Benefit society act 2014 require the 
Board to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year. under that law, 
the directors have elected to prepare 
the financial statements in accordance 
with united Kingdom Generally 
accepted accounting practice (united 
Kingdom accounting standards and 
applicable laws) including the financial 
reporting standard ‘Frs102’. under the 
co-operative and community Benefit 
society act 2014, the directors must 
not approve the financial statements 
unless they are satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs and surplus or deficit of the 
Group and association for that period. 
in preparing these financial statements, 
the directors are required to:

•	 select suitable accounting policies 
and then apply them consistently.

•	 Make judgments and accounting 
estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent.

•	 state whether applicable uK 
accounting standards and the 
housing sorp 2014, statement of 
recommended practice registered 
housing for registered social 
housing providers, have been 

followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements.

•	 prepare the financial statements on 
the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the 
Group and association will continue 
in business.

the Board is responsible for keeping 
proper accounting records which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position of 
the Group. it is also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group 
and hence for taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities.

in so far as each of the directors is aware:

•	 there is no relevant information 
of which the Group’s auditors are 
unaware; and

•	 the directors have taken all the 
steps that they ought to have 
taken as a director in order to make 
themselves aware of any relevant 
information and to establish that 
the Group’s auditors are aware of 
that information.

the Board is responsible for the 
maintenance and integrity of the corporate 
and financial information included on the 
Group’s website. legislation in the united 
Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Employees
our aim is to recruit, retain and develop 
employees who share our passion for 
delivering great service to our customers. 
there is a culture of shared leadership, 
innovation and continual personal 
development across the Group. this 
has been brought together under our 
“iamrhp” brand which focuses upon the 
behaviours which then deliver great 
results for the Group. whilst not being a 
large organisation, we have put in place 
a wide range of initiatives which support 
our employees to develop and succeed 
which include an engaging induction 
programme, offering climbing frame 
opportunities, a tailored learning and 
development experience and an employee 
benefits portal called “rhperks”. 

this focus on employee engagement 
enabled us to achieve iip Gold, iip 
Gold Employer of the year and no 1 in 
the dolphin index for innovation for 
housing associations during the year. 
our approach was further recognised in 
april 2016 when we came 1st in the uK in 
the Great place to work (medium sized) 
awards for 2015.

stateMent oF the responsiBilities oF the Board 

1st place in Great 

Place to work 
(medium sized 
companies)
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Equal opportunities 
rhp is committed to promoting equality 
of opportunity in its employment 
practices from recruitment and 
selection, through learning and 
development, promotion and appraisal 
to retirement. the Group will fairly 
consider any employment applications 
made by disabled people. we will 
also attempt to continue to employ 
employees who become disabled during 
their employment.

in the last year, the percentage of 
staff from a black or minority ethnic 
background was 18%, the percentage 
of female staff was 52%, and the 
percentage of disabled staff was 10%. 
rhp also considers that employee 
involvement is essential to its success 
and uses a wide range of methods 
to inform, consult and involve its 
employees including through our 
Engagement champions, a group made 
up of employees from all parts of the 
organisation.

Health and Safety
the Board is aware of its responsibilities 
on all matters relating to health and 
safety. a health and safety policy 
is in place with a rolling programme 
of training reviewed and delivered 
annually. an employee health and 
safety committee meets on a quarterly 
basis which is chaired by the Executive 
director of corporate services. health 
and safety activity is reported monthly 
to the Management team, quarterly to 
the risk panel and annually to the Board.

Donations
the Group made no charitable or 
political donations during the year 
under review. 

Going concern
after making enquiries the Board 
has a reasonable expectation that 
the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future, being a period of 
twelve months after the date on which 
the report and financial statements are 
signed. For this reason, it continues to 
adopt the going concern basis in the 
financial statements.

External Auditors
Grant thornton uK llp has expressed 

their willingness to continue in office 
and a resolution to re-appoint them as 
auditors will be proposed at the annual 
General Meeting.

Statement of Compliance
in preparing the operating and Financial 
review and report of the Board, the 
Board has followed the principles set 
out in the sorp 2014.

the financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 have been prepared 
in compliance with Frs102 and the 
statement of recommended practice 
(sorp) - accounting by registered 
housing providers update 2014.

in accordance with the requirements 
of the accounting direction 2015, the 
Board certifies that the Group has 
complied with the requirements of 
the homes and communities agency’s 
Governance and Financial viability 
standard.

Annual general meeting
the annual general meeting will be held 
on thursday 14 July 2016 at waldegrave 
road, teddington.

the report of the Board was approved by 
the Board on 14 July 2016 and signed on 
its behalf by:

John newbury 

Group chair
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we have audited the financial 
statements of richmond housing 
partnership limited (the society) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 
which comprise the statements of 
comprehensive income, the statements 
of financial position, the statements of 
reserves, the consolidated statement of 
cashflows and the related notes. 

the financial reporting framework that 
has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and united Kingdom 
accounting standards (united Kingdom 
Generally accepted accounting 
practice) including Frs102 the 
Financial reporting standard applicable 
in the uK and republic of ireland.

this report is made solely to the society, 
as a body, in accordance with sections 
87(2) and 98(7) of the co-operative and 
community Benefit societies act 2014. 
our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the society those 
matters we are required to state to it 
in an auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose. 

to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the 
society as a body, for our audit work, for 
this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.

Respective responsibilities of 
directors and auditor
as explained more fully in the 
statement of directors’ responsibilities 
set out on page 39 and 40 the directors 
are responsible for the preparation of 
financial statements which give a true 
and fair view. 

our responsibility is to audit and express 
an opinion on the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and 
international standards on auditing (uK 
and ireland). those standards require us 
to comply with the auditing practices 
Board’s Ethical standards for auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial 
statements
a description of the scope of an audit of 
financial statements is provided on the 
Financial reporting council’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion the financial statements:

•	 Give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Group’s and the parent 
society’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 
and of the Group’s and the parent 
society’s income and expenditure for 
the year then ended; 

•	 have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the co-operative 
and community Benefit societies 
act 2014, the housing and 
regeneration act 2008, and the 
accounting direction for private 
registered providers of social 
housing 2015.

Matters on which we are required to 
report by exception
we have nothing to report in respect 
of the following matters where the 
co-operative and community Benefit 
societies act 2014 requires us to report 
to you if, in our opinion:

•	 a satisfactory system of control 
over transactions has not been 
maintained; or

•	 the parent society has not kept 
proper accounting records;

•	 the financial statements are not 
in agreement with the books of 
account; or

•	 we have not received all the 
information and explanations we 
need for our audit.

 

 
Grant thornton uK llp 
statutory auditor, chartered 
accountants, london

independent auditor’s report to the MeMBers oF 
rhp Group liMited
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stateMents oF coMprehensive incoMe 
For  the year endinG 31 March 2016

Group Association

Note
2016 

£’000
2015 

£’000
2016 

£’000
2015 

£’000

Turnover 2 53,496 52,806 50,782 50,192

Cost of sales 2 (59) (669) (59) (669)

Operating Costs 2 (31,757) (32,079) (29,981) (30,305)

Operating surplus/ deficit 2 21,680 20,058 20,742 19,218

Gain on sale of fixed assets 6 101 220 101 220

interest receivable and other income 7 552 108 595 118

interest payable 8 (9,727) (7,304) (9,692) (7,239)

Movement in fair value of financial instruments (708) (2,739) (708) (2,739)

Movement in fair value of investment properties 20 40 2,900 40 2,900

Surplus before tax 11,938 13,243 11,078 12,478

taxation 11 - - - -

Surplus for the year 11,938 13,243 11,078 12,478

actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions 9 731 (850) 731 (861)

Total comprehensive income for the year 12,669 12,393 11,809 11,617

the consolidated results relate wholly to continuing activities.

 
the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

 
the financial statements were approved authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 14 July 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

John newbury    toby d’olier     david done  
chair      Member of Group audit committee   chief Executive
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stateMent oF Financial position 
as at 31 March 2016

Group Association

Note
2016 

£’000
2015 

£’000
2016 

£’000
2015 

£’000

Fixed Assets

tangible fixed assets 12 267,710 252,392 247,585 232,389

investment properties 20 6,645 6,605 7,091 7,051

investments in subsidiaries 18 - - 13 13

investments: loan to subsidiary 18 - - 3,374 3,844

274,355 258,997 258,063 243,297

other tangible fixed assets 16 8,134 8,176 7,677 7,707

intangible fixed assets 17 411 419 411 419

282,900 267,592 266,151 251,423

Current Assets

properties held for sale 19 549 58 549 58

trade and other debtors 21 2,948 5,336 2,823 5,259

investments 22 60,484 67,000 60,484 67,000

cash at bank and in hand 9,344 14,093 8,925 13,717

73,325 86,487 72,781 86,034

creditors: amounts falling due within one year 23 (26,375) (24,960) (25,681) (24,160)

Net current assets 46,950 61,527 47,100 61,874

Total assets less current liabilities 329,850 329,119 313,251 313,297

creditors: amounts falling due after more than one 
year

24 (251,391) (262,773) (240,173) (251,385)

provision for liabilities 28 (3,147) (3,009) (3,041) (2,830)

net pension liability 9 (3,850) (4,544) (3,229) (4,083)

Total net assets 71,462 58,793 66,808 54,999

Reserves

income and expenditure reserve 71,062 58,393 66,408 54,599

revaluation reserve 400 400 400 400

Total reserves 71,462 58,793 66,808 54,999

the notes on pages 33 to 63 form part of these financial statements. 

the financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 14 July 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

John newbury    toby d’olier     david done  
chair      Member of Group audit committee   chief Executive
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stateMents oF reserves 
For the year endinG 31 March 2016

GROUP

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve 
£’000

Revaluation 
Reserve 

£’000
Total 

£’000

Balance as at 1 april 2014 46,000 400 46,400

surplus for the year 13,243 - 13,243

actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme (850) - (850)

Balance at 31 March 2015 58,393 400 58,793

surplus for the year 11,938 - 11,938

actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme 731 - 731

Balance at 31 March 2016 71,062 400 71,462

ASSOCIATION

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve 
£’000

Revaluation 
Reserve 

£’000
Total 

£’000

Balance as at 1 april 2014 42,982 400 43,382

surplus for the year 12,478 - 12,478

actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme (861) - (861)

Balance at 31 March 2015 54,599 400 54,999

surplus for the year 11,078 - 11,078

actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme 731 - 731

Balance at 31 March 2016 66,408 400 66,808
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consolidated stateMent oF cash Flows 
For the year endinG 31 March 2016

Note
2016 

£’000
2015 

£’000

Net cash generated from operating activities 33 31,004 26,785

Cash flows from investing activities

purchase and improvement of housing properties (22,478) (31,334)

social housing grant received 1,837 919

other grants received - 561

purchase of other fixed assets (560) (727)

proceeds from sale of housing properties 2,398 1,124

(18,803) (29,457)

Cash flow from financing activities 

interest received 552 104

interest paid (10,018) (6,720)

new secured loans - 138,601

repayments of borrowings (14,000) (60,030)

debt issue cost - (870)

(23,466) 71,085

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (11,265) 68,413

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 81,093 12,680

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 69,828 81,093

 
the notes on pages 33 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
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notes to the Financial stateMents

1. accOuntinG pOlicieS

Basis of accounting
the financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with uK Generally 
accepted accounting practice (uK 
Gaap) including Financial reporting 
standard 102 (Frs102) and the 
statement of recommended practice: 
accounting by registered social 
landlords issued in January 2014 (sorp 
2014), and comply with the accounting 
direction for private registered 
providers of social housing 2015. the 
Board is satisfied that the current 
accounting policies are the most 
appropriate for the Group as public 
benefit entities.

this is the first year in which the 
financial statements have been 
prepared under Frs102. refer to note 37 
for an explanation of the transition.

the financial statements are presented 
in sterling (£).

significant judgements and estimates
preparation of the financial statements 
requires management to make 
significant judgements and estimates. 
the items in the financial statements 
where these judgements and estimates 
have been made include: 

significant management judgements
the following are the significant 
management judgements made in 
applying the accounting policies of the 
Group that have the most significant 
effect on the financial statements.

the parent’s individual financial 
statements have adopted the following 
disclosure exemptions: 

•	 Financial instrument disclosures, 
including:

 -  categories of financial 
instruments.

•	 items of income, expenses, gains 
or losses relating to financial 
instruments.

•	 disclosing the parent only cash flow 
statement.

Financial instruments
we have accounted for our dexia loan 
(not including the cancellables) as basic 
financial instruments. this is on the 
basis that we consider any fixed rate 
debt with two-way early redemption 
indemnity clauses to be held for the 
long term as per treasury strategy and 
be non-speculative.

the bond is also accounted for as a 
basic financial instrument. loan notes 
which are basic financial instruments 
are initially recorded at the present 
value of future payments discounted at 
a market rate of interest for a similar 
loan. subsequently, they are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. loan notes that are 
receivable within one year are not 
discounted.

Exposure to and management of 
financial risks 

Impairment
From 1 april 2016, rhp has reduced 
social housing rents by one per cent 
per annum and will continue to do so in 
each year until 2019/20 in accordance 
with the housing and planning act 
2016. despite cost efficiency savings 
and other changes to the business, 
compliance with the new rent regime 
has resulted in a loss of net income for 
certain social housing property. this is a 
trigger for impairment.

as a result, we estimated the 
recoverable amount of housing 
properties as follows:

a. determined the level at which 
recoverable amount is to be 
assessed (i.e., the asset level or 
cash-generating unit (cGu) level). 
the cGu level was determined to be 
an individual scheme.

b. Estimated the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit.

c. calculated the carrying amount of 
the cash-generating unit and; 

d. compared the carrying amount 
to the recoverable amount to 
determine if an impairment loss has 
occurred.

Based on this assessment, we 
calculated the depreciated 
replacement cost (drc) of each 
social housing property scheme, using 
appropriate construction costs and land 
prices. comparing this to the carrying 
amount of each scheme, we made 
no impairment charge against social 
housing properties.

Capitalisation of property 
development costs
distinguishing the point at which 
a project is more likely than not to 
continue, allowing capitalisation of 
associated development costs requires 
judgement. after capitalisation 
management monitors the asset and 
considers whether changes indicate 
that impairment is required. 

Supporting People
Management judgement is applied 
in determining the extent to which 
the risks and benefits are transferred 
to the association when considering 
the income to be recognised. £476k 
of supporting people income was 
recognised in the year.

Estimation uncertainty
information about estimates and 
assumptions that have the most 
significant effect on recognition and 
measurement of assets, liabilities, 
income and expense is provided below. 
actual results may be substantially 
different.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimates 
of the useful lives of depreciable 
assets at each reporting date based 
on the expected utility of the assets. 
uncertainties in these estimates relate 
to technological obsolescence that may 
change the utility of certain software 
and it equipment and changes to 
decent homes standards which may 
require more frequent replacement 
of key components. accumulated 
depreciation at 31 March 2016 was 
£5.53m.
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Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Management’s estimate of the dBo is 
based on a number of critical underlying 
assumptions such as standard rates of 
inflation, mortality, discount rate and 
anticipation of future salary increases. 
variation in these assumptions may 
significantly impact the dBo amount 
and the annual defined benefit 
expenses. the liability at 31 March 2016 
was £3,228k.

Fair value measurement
Management uses valuation techniques 
to determine the fair value of 
financial instruments (where active 
market quotes are not available) and 
non-financial assets. this involves 
developing estimates and assumptions 
consistent with how market 
participants would price the instrument. 
Management bases its assumptions on 
observable data as far as possible but 
this is not always available. in that case 
management uses the best information 
available. Estimated fair values may 
vary from the actual prices. Fair value 
measurements were applied to two 
loans which had options in the year as 
well as our investment properties. the 
total value of these instruments was 
£30.9m and the fair value of investment 
properties was £7.1m at 31 March 2016.

Basis of consolidation
the Group accounts consolidate the 
accounts of rhp and its subsidiaries 
at 31 March 2016 using acquisition 
accounting and consistency of 
accounting policies.

Investment in subsidiaries
the consolidated financial statements 
incorporate the financial statements of 
the association and entities (including 
special purpose entities) controlled by 
the Group. control is achieved where 
the Group has the power to govern the 
financial and operating policies of an 
entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.

all intra-group transactions, balances, 
income and expenses are eliminated in 
full on consolidation. 

investments in subsidiaries are 
accounted for at cost less impairment 
in the individual financial statements.

Turnover & revenue recognition
turnover compromises rental income 
receivable in the year, net of rent and 
service charge losses from voids, income 
from shared ownership first tranche 
sales, sales of properties built for sale 
and other services included at the 
invoiced value (excluding vat) of goods 
and services supplied in the year and 
revenue grants receivable in the year.

rental income is recognised from 
the point when properties under 
development reach practical completion 
or otherwise become available for 
letting. income from first tranche 
sales and sales of properties built for 
sale is recognised at the point of legal 
completion of the sale. revenue grants 
are receivable when the conditions 
for receipt of agreed grant funding 
have been met. Government grants 
are accounted for using the accruals 
method and non-government grants are 
accounted for using the performance 
method. charges for support services 
funded under supporting people are 
recognised as they fall due under 
the contractual arrangements with 
administering authorities.

Value added tax
the Group charges value added tax 
(vat) on some of its income and is able 
to recover part of the vat it incurs on 
expenditure. the financial statements 
include vat to the extent that it is 
suffered by the association and not 
recoverable from hM revenue & 
customs. the balance of vat payable or 
recoverable at the year-end is included 
as a current liability or asset.

Interest payable
interest is capitalised on borrowings to 
finance developments to the extent that 
it accrues in respect of the period of 
development if it represents either:

a. interest on borrowings specifically 
financing the development 
programme after deduction of 
interest on social housing grant in 
advance; or

b. interest on borrowings of the 
association as a whole after deduction 
of interest on social housing grant 
in advance to the extent that they 
can be deemed to be financing the 
development programme.

other interest payable is charged to the 
income and expenditure account in the year.

Pensions
the Group participates in two funded 
multi-employer defined benefit 
schemes, the social housing pension 
scheme (shps) and the london 
Borough of richmond pension Fund 
(lBrpF).

the shps scheme is a defined benefit 
scheme in the uK. it is not possible 
for the association or Group to obtain 
sufficient information to enable it to 
account for the scheme as a defined 
benefit scheme. therefore it accounts 
for the scheme as a defined contribution 
scheme. the past service obligation 
is treated as a liability using the net 
present value discounted cash flow 
technique. the scheme is subject to 
the funding legislation outlined in the 
pensions act 2004 which came into force 
on 30 december 2005. this, together 
with documents issued by the pensions 
regulator and technical actuarial 
standards issued by the Financial 
reporting council, set out the framework 
for funding defined benefit occupational 
pension schemes in the uK.

For lBrpF, scheme assets are 
measured at fair values. scheme 
liabilities are measured on an actuarial 
basis using the projected unit method 
and are discounted at appropriate 
high quality corporate bond rates. 
the net surplus or deficit is presented 
separately from other net assets on 
the balance sheet. a net surplus is 
recognised only to the extent that it is 
recoverable by the Group.

the current service cost and costs 
from settlements and curtailments are 
charged against operating surplus. past 
service costs are spread over the period 
until the benefit increases vest. interest 
on the scheme liabilities are included 
net in other finance costs/income. 
actuarial gains and losses are reported 
in other comprehensive income. 

Supporting People
charges for support services funded 
under supporting people are recognised 
as they fall due under the contractual 
arrangements with administering 
authorities. 
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Housing properties 

housing properties are principally 
properties available for rent and are 
stated at cost less depreciation and 
impairment losses. cost includes the 
cost of acquiring land and buildings, 
development costs, interest charges 
incurred during the development period 
and expenditure incurred in respect of 
improvements. 

works to existing properties which 
replace a component that has been 
treated separately for depreciation 
purposes, along with those works that 
result in an increase in net rental income 
over the lives of the properties, thereby 
enhancing the economic benefits of the 
assets, are capitalised as improvements. 
only the direct overhead costs 
associated with new developments or 
improvements are capitalised.

shared ownership properties are split 
proportionally between current and 
fixed assets based on the element 
relating to expected first tranche sales. 
the first tranche proportion is classed 
as a current asset and related sales 
proceeds included in turnover, the 
remaining element is classed as fixed 
asset and included in housing properties 
at cost, less any provisions needed for 
depreciation or impairment.

Impairment of non-financial assets
at each reporting date, non-financial 
assets not carried at fair value are 
assessed to determine whether there 
is an indication that the asset may be 
impaired. if there is such an indication, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is 
compared to the carrying amount of the 
asset. asset can be an individual asset 
or a cash generating unit.

where the asset does not generate cash 
flows that are independent from the 
cash flows of other assets, the Group 
estimates the recoverable amount of 
the group of assets (a cash-generating 
unit) to which the asset belongs. For 
the purpose of conducting impairment 
reviews, cash-generating units are 
considered to be groups of assets that 
have separately identifiable cash flows. 

the recoverable amount of the asset is 
the higher of the fair value less costs to 
sell and the value in use. 

if the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated to be lower than the 
carrying amount, the carrying amount 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
an impairment loss is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income 
unless the asset has been revalued in 
which case the amount is recognised in 
other comprehensive income section to 
the extent of the revaluation. thereafter 
any excess is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

if an impairment loss is subsequently 
reversed, the carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, 
but only to the extent that the revised 
carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of depreciation 
or amortisation) had no impairment 
loss been recognised in prior periods. 
a reversal of an impairment loss 
is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

Donated land
land donated by local authorities and 
others is added to cost at the market 
value of the land at the time of the 
donation.

Investment properties
investment properties consist of 
commercial properties (shops) and 
other properties (rental space in main 
office building), not held for the social 
benefit or for use in the business. 
investment properties are measured 
at cost on initial recognition and 
subsequently at fair value as at the 
year end, with changes in fair value 
recognised in income and expenditure.

Social Housing Grant
social housing Grant (shG) is receivable 
from the Greater london authority (Gla). 
Grants received for housing properties 
are recognised in income over the useful 
life of the housing property structure 
and, where applicable, its individual 
components (excluding land) under the 
accruals model. 

shG due from the Gla or received in 
advance is included as a current asset 
or liability. 

shG is subordinated to the repayment of 
loans by agreement with the Gla. shG 
released on sale of a property may be 

repayable but is normally available to be 
recycled and is credited to a disposals 
proceeds Fund (dpF)and included in the 
balance sheet in creditors.

Other grants 
these include grants from local 
authorities. these are recognised using 
the accrual model.

Grants in respect of revenue 
expenditure are credited to the 
other comprehensive income when 
performance conditions are met or 
entitlement occurs. 

Depreciation of housing properties
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
depreciation of structure & buildings 
is charged so as to write down the net 
book value of housing properties to their 
estimated residual value, on a straight 
line basis, over their estimated useful 
economic lives in the business. For 
components, the depreciable amount 
is arrived at on the basis of original cost 
less residual value.

the Group’s housing properties held on 
leases are amortised over the life of the 
lease or their estimated useful lives in 
the business if shorter.

the Group depreciates the major 
components of its housing properties 
over the following periods:

structure  100 years 
Kitchen   20 years 
Bathroom  30 years 
central heating  15 years 
lifts    25 years 
roofs    50 years 
window   30 years 
door    20 years 
water tanks  40 years

Other tangible fixed assets 
depreciation is provided on a straight 
line basis on the cost of other tangible 
fixed assets to write them down to their 
estimated residual values over their 
expected useful lives which are as follows:

office Building  100 years 
Furniture, fixtures  8 years 
and fittings    
computers &  3 to 7 years 
office equipment   
Motor vehicles  3 years

no depreciation is provided on freehold land.
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Gains or losses arising on the disposal 
of other tangible fixed assets are 
determined as the difference between 
the disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the assets and 
are recognised as part of the surplus/ 
deficit for the year.

Intangible fixed assets
depreciation is provided on a straight 
line basis on the cost of software to 
write them down to their estimated 
residual values over the expected useful 
lives which are as follows:

software   3 to 7 years

Properties for sale
shared ownership first tranche sales, 
completed properties for outright 
sale and property under construction 
are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value. cost comprises 
materials, direct labour and direct 
development overheads. net realisable 
value is based on estimated sales price 
after allowing for all further costs of 
completion and disposal.

Provisions for liabilities
the Group recognises a provision for 
annual leave accrued by employees as a 
result of contracted services rendered 
in the current period, and which 
employees are entitled to carry forward 
and use within the next 12 months. the 
provision is measured at the salary cost 
payable for the period of absence. 

the deficit recognised for the shps 
scheme is also recognised as a liability.

Leased assets
rentals payable under operating leases 
and any lease incentives are charged to 
the income and expenditure account on 
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Website development costs
website development costs are 
capitalised and depreciated as it is 
a revenue generating item. other 
on-going costs of maintaining and 
operating the website are charged as 
other operating costs as incurred.

Current asset investments
investments are stated at fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents
cash and cash equivalents are readily 
disposable current asset investments. 
they include some money market 

deposits, held for more than 24 hours, 
which can only be withdrawn without 
penalty on maturity or by giving notice 
of more than one working day.

Dilapidation costs
one of our subsidiaries (co-op homes) 
leases for temporary social housing 
properties contain repair covenants 
relating to the upkeep of the properties. 
these lease covenants can give rise to 
dilapidation works or claims during or 
at the end of the related lease. co-op 
homes accounts for these costs in 
accordance with Frs102 which usually 
requires the costs to be recognised 
when the work is undertaken. at the end 
of leases, or otherwise in accordance 
with Frs102, co-op homes makes 
provision for the expected cost of 
dilapidation work or claims.

Investment in subsidiaries
rhp holds £1 ordinary shares in rhp 
Finance plc, part subscribed at 25p.

rhp has an intercompany loan with 
co-op homes (south) ltd. it is an arm’s 
length commercial agreement and has 
an outstanding balance of £3.4m (2015: 
£3.8m). the loan is repayable in 2031.

Loans and other financial 
instruments

(i) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade 
and other debtors and cash and bank 
balances are initially recognised 
at transaction price unless the 
arrangement constitutes a financing 
transaction, where the transaction is 
measured at the present value of the 
future receipts discounted at a market 
rate of interest.

such assets are subsequently carried 
at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method.

at the end of each reporting period, 
financial assets measured at amortised 
costs are assessed for objective 
evidence of impairment. if an asset 
is impaired, the impairment loss 
is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. if there is a 
decrease in the impairment loss, the 
impairment is reversed.

other financial assets are initially 
measured at fair value, which is 
normally the transaction price.

such assets are subsequently carried at 

fair value and the changes in fair value 
are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

Financial assets are derecognised 
when (a) the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire or 
are settled, or (b) substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the ownership of 
the asset are transferred to another 
party, or (c) despite having retained 
some significant risks and rewards of 
ownership, control of the asset has been 
transferred to another party who has 
the practical ability to unilaterally sell 
the asset to an unrelated party without 
imposing additional restrictions. 

(ii) Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities include trade 
and other creditors, bank loans and 
loans from other Group companies and 
are initially recognised at transaction 
price, unless the arrangement 
constitutes a financing arrangement, 
where the debt instrument is measured 
at the present value of the future 
receipts discounted at the market rate 
of interest.

debt instruments are subsequently 
carried at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan 
facilities are recognised as transaction 
costs of the loan to the extent that it is 
probable that some or all of the facility 
will be drawn down. in this case, the fee 
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. 
to the extent that there is no evidence 
that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down, the fee is 
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity 
services and amortised over the period of 
the facility to which it relates.

trade creditors are obligations to 
pay for goods and services that have 
been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. accounts 
payable are classified as current 
liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less. if not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognised 
when the liability is extinguished, that 
is when the contractual obligation is 
discharged, cancelled, expires or is 
substantially modified.

Further details on financial instruments 
are given in note 36.
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2 turnOver, cOSt Of SaleS, OperatinG cOStS & OperatinG SurpluS

Year to 31 March 2016 2015

GROUP Turnover 
£’000

Cost 
of Sales 

£’000

Operating 
Expenditure 

£’000

Operating 
Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

£’000

Operating 
Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

£’000

Social Housing Lettings (Note 3) 48,815 - (27,692) 21,123 18,811

Other Social Housing Activities

leasehold services 1,531 - (1,738) (207) 2

leasehold major repairs 1,000 - (506) 494 (74)

First tranche shared ownership sales 111 (59) - 52 560

Garages 826 (334) 492

other 1,213 - (1,487) (274) 759

53,496 (59) (31,757) 21,680 20,058

Year to 31 March 2016 2015

ASSOCIATION Turnover 
£’000

Cost 
of Sales 

£’000

Operating 
Expenditure 

£’000

Operating 
Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

£’000

Operating 
Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

£’000

Social Housing Lettings (Note 3) 46,600 - (26,573) 20,027 17,884

Other Social Housing Activities

leasehold services 1,531 - (1,738) (207) 2

leasehold major repairs 1,000 - (506) 494 (74)

First tranche shared ownership sales 111 (59) - 52 560

Garages 826 (334) 492

other 714 - (830) (116) 846

50,782 (59) (29,981) 20,742 19,218
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3 incOme & eXpenDiture frOm SOcial hOuSinG lettinGS

GROUP

General 
Needs 

Housing 
£’000

 Key 
Worker 

£’000

Supported 
Housing 

£’000

Shared 
Ownership 

£’000

2016 
Total 

£’000

2015 
Total 

£’000

rents receivable 40,801 1,510 2,619 269 45,199 43,810

service & other charges receivable 1,982 35 718 10 2,745 2,661

charges for support services 62 1 488 - 551 555

amortised government grants 304 3 12 1 320 303

Turnover from Social Housing Lettings 43,149 1,549 3,837 280 48,815 47,329

Management 11,398 207 969 62 12,636 11,857

service charge costs 2,163 46 721 12 2,942 2,438

rents payable (65) - - - (65) 17

routine maintenance 2,930 50 200 15 3,195 4,094

planned maintenance 2,711 50 181 15 2,957 3,419

Major repairs expenditure 1,099 47 124 14 1,284 1,896

Bad debts 172 3 - 1 176 307

depreciation 4,272 72 263 21 4,628 4,492

dilapidation provision reversal (82) - - - (82) (29)

other costs 21 - - - 21 27

Operating costs on Social Housing 
Lettings 24,619 475 2,458 140 27,692 28,518

Operating surplus/deficit for 
social housing lettings 18,350 1,074 1,379 140 21,123 18,811

void losses (489) (8) (67) - (554) (647)

ASSOCIATION

General 
Needs 

Housing 
£’000

 Key 
Worker 

£’000

Supported 
Housing 

£’000

Shared 
Ownership 

£’000

2016 
Total 

£’000

2015 
Total 

£’000

rents receivable net of 38,820 1,510 2,619 269 43,218 41,914

service & other charges receivable 1,881 35 718 10 2,644 2,561

charges for support services 62 1 488 - 551 555

amortised government grants 171 3 12 1 187 169

Turnover from Social Housing Lettings 40,934 1,549 3,837 280 46,600 45,199

Management 11,017 207 969 62 12,255 11,572

service charge costs 2,047 46 721 12 2,826 2,335

routine maintenance 2,693 50 200 15 2,958 3,848

planned maintenance 2,647 50 181 15 2,893 3,357

Major repairs expenditure 1,099 47 124 14 1,284 1,896

Bad debts 171 3 - 1 175 302

depreciation 3,826 72 263 21 4,182 4,005

Operating costs on Social Housing 
Lettings 23,500 475 2,458 140 26,573 27,315

Operating surplus/deficit for 
social housing lettings 17,434 1,074 1,379 140 20,027 17,884

void losses (484) (8) (67) - (559) (634)
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4 accOmmODatiOn 

at the end of the period, accommodation in management for each class of accommodation in the Group and association was as 
follows:

Social housing – managed directly

Group Association

2016 
No.

2015 
No.

2016 
No.

2015 
No.

General needs housing 6,230 6,307 5,928 6,005

affordable housing 444 339 444 339

supported housing 421 420 421 420

shared ownership 35 21 35 21

Total units in ownership 7,130 7,087 6,828 6,785

accommodation managed on behalf of others 780 727 21 21

Total units managed or owned 7,910 7,814 6,849 6,806

leasehold 1,928 1,921 1,928 1,921

Total units in Management (including Leasehold) 9,838 9,735 8,777 8,727
 

5 OperatinG SurpluS/(Deficit)

This is arrived at after charging:

Group Association

2016 
No.

2015 
No.

2016 
No.

2015 
No.

depreciation of housing properties 4,628 4,492 4,182 4,005

depreciation of garages 174 156 174 156

depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 491 370 475 354

amortisation of intangible fixed assets 236 358 236 358

operating lease rentals

- land and buildings 50 52 - -

- vehicles 40 25 40 25

- office equipment and computers 84 36 84 36

auditors’ remuneration (Excluding vat)

- For audit of statutory accounts 62 57 49 44

- For service charge audit 6 6 6 6
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6 SurpluS On Sale Of fiXeD aSSetS

Housing Properties:

Group Association

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

disposal proceeds 2,541 3,279 2,541 3,279

amounts payable to lBrut under rtB sharing agreement (1,369) (1,651) (1,369) (1,651)

cost of disposals (287) (436) (287) (436)

transfer to disposal proceeds Fund (note 27) (777) (954) (777) (954)

selling costs (7) (18) (7) (18)

Surplus 101 220 101 220

7 Other intereSt receivaBle & Similar incOme

Group Association

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

interest receivable and similar income 552 108 595 118

8 intereSt & financinG cOStS

Group Association

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

loans and bank overdrafts 9,948 7,478 9,913 7,413

other (dpF) 2 4 2 4

interest charge on pensions 126 12 126 12

10,076 7,494 10,041 7,429

capitalised finance cost amortised 248 385 248 385

interest payable capitalised on property under construction (597) (575) (597) (575)

9,727 7,304 9,692 7,239

capitalisation rate used to determine the finance costs capitalised 
during the period

4.07% 4.12% 4.07% 4.12%
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8 emplOyeeS

Group Association

2016 
No.

2015 
No.

2016 
No.

2015 
No.

Average monthly number of employees:

administration 72 60 53 52

development 4 3 4 3

housing, support and care 192 208 192 199

268 271 249 254

Average monthly number of employees expressed in full time 
equivalents:

administration 70 51 53 43

development 4 3 4 3

housing, support and care 169 192 169 185

243 246 226 231

Full time equivalents are calculated based on a standard working week of 36 hours.

Employee costs: £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

wages and salaries 7,815 7,568 7,210 7,039

social security costs 698 598 624 556

other pension costs 1,200 901 965 821

9,713 9,067 8,799 8,416

Pensions Costs

Group Association

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

regular employer contributions to shps and lBrpF 472 483 440 455

pension deficit payments to shps and lBrpF 436 366 436 366

pension deficit liability provision movements 203 52 - -

one-off costs related to the closure of lBrpF to new contributions 89 - 89 -

Total pensions costs 1,200 901 965 821

the full time equivalent number of staff (excluding executive directors) who received remuneration:

Pensions Costs 2016 
 No.

2015  
No.

£60,001 to £70,000 6 5

£70,001 to £80,000 2 4

£80,001 to £90,000 3 2

£90,001 to £100,000 - 1

£100,001 to £110,000 1 1
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Deficit contributions

Tier 1 
From 1 april 2016 to 30 september 2020:

£40.6m per annum 
(payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 1 april)

Tier 2 
From 1 april 2016 to 30 september 2023:

£28.6m per annum 
(payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year on 1 april)

Tier 3 
From 1 april 2016 to 30 september 2026:

£32.7m per annum 
(payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 1 april)

Tier 4 
From 1 april 2016 to 30 september 2026:

£31.7m per annum 
(payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year on 1 april)

 
note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 september 2011; this valuation was certified 
on 17 december 2012 and showed assets of £2,062m, liabilities of £3,097m and a deficit of £1,035m. to eliminate this funding 
shortfall, payments consisted of the tier 1, 2 & 3 deficit contributions.

where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the company recognises 
a liability for this obligation on the balance sheet. the amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction 
contributions payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. the present value is calculated using the discount rate 
detailed in these disclosures. the unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost and the deficit is included in 
provision for liabilities.

PRESENT VALUES OF PROVISION
Period Ending 
31 March 2016 

(£000s)

Period Ending 
31 March 2015 

(£000s)

present value of provision 3,041 2,593

RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING PROVISIONS
Period Ending 
31 March 2016 

(£000s)

Period Ending 
31 March 2015 

(£000s)

provision at start of period 2,593 2,708

unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 47 77

deficit contribution paid (319) (305)

remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions (17) 113

remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule 737 -

provision at end of period 3,041 2,593

the association’s employees are 
members of the social housing pension 
scheme (shps) or of the london Borough 
of richmond pension Fund (lBrpF). the 
employees of our subsidiary are members 
of the shps scheme. Further information 
on each scheme is given below.

Social Housing Pension Scheme
rhp and its subsidiary (co-op homes) 
participate in the social housing pension 
scheme (shps). the scheme is a defined 
benefit scheme in the uK. it is not possible 
for the company to obtain sufficient 
information to enable it to account for 
the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. 
therefore it accounts for the scheme as a 
defined contribution scheme.

the scheme is subject to the funding 
legislation outlined in the pensions 
act 2004 which came into force on 30 
december 2005. this, together with 
documents issued by the pensions 
regulator and technical actuarial 
standards issued by the Financial 
reporting council, set out the framework 
for funding defined benefit occupational 
pension schemes in the uK.

the scheme is classified as a ‘last-man 
standing arrangement’. therefore the 
company is potentially liable for other 
participating employers’ obligations if 
those employers are unable to meet 
their share of the scheme deficit 
following withdrawal from the scheme. 

participating employers are legally 
required to meet their share of the 
scheme deficit on an annuity purchase 
basis on withdrawal from the scheme.

a full actuarial valuation for the scheme 
was carried out with an effective 
date of 30 september 2014. this 
actuarial valuation was certified on 
23 november 2015 and showed assets 
of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m and 
a deficit of £1,323m. to eliminate this 
funding shortfall, the trustees and the 
participating employers have agreed that 
additional contributions will be paid, in 
combination from all employers, to the 
scheme as follows:
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IMPACT
Period Ending 
31 March 2016 

(£000s)

Period Ending 
31 March 2015 

(£000s)

interest expense 47 77

remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions (17) 114

remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule 737 -

contributions paid in respect of future service* 319 339

costs recognised in income and expenditure account 627 644
 
*includes defined contribution schemes and future service contributions (i.e. excluding any deficit reduction payments) to defined benefit schemes which are treated as defined 
contribution schemes. 

ASSUMPTIONS
31 March 2016 

% per annum
31 March 2015 

% per annum
31 March 2014 

% per annum

rate of discount 2.06 1.92 3.02
  
the discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery plan contributions 
due, would give the same results as using a full aa corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions.

the following schedule details the deficit contributions agreed between the association and the scheme at each year end period:

DEFICIT CONTRIBUTIONS SCHEDULE

Year ending
31 March 2016 

(£000s)
31 March 2015 

(£000s)
31 March 2014 

(£000s)

year 1 400 319 305

year 2 417 333 319

year 3 434 347 333

year 4 452 363 347

year 5 375 379 363

year 6 289 299 379

year 7 300 211 299

year 8 234 220 211

year 9 161 151 220

year 10 165 75 151

year 11 85 78 75

year 12 - 40 78

year 13 - - 40

year 14 - - -

year 15 - - -

year 16 - - -

year 17 - - -

year 18 - - -

year 19 - - -

year 20 - - -
 
the association must recognise a liability measured as the present value of the contributions payable that arise from the deficit 
recovery agreement and the resulting expense in the income and expenditure account i.e. the unwinding of the discount rate as a 
finance cost in the period in which it arises. 

it is these contributions that have been used to derive the association’s balance sheet liability.
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London Borough of Richmond Pension Fund (LBRPF)
the lBrpF is a multi-employer scheme, which is administered by richmond council under the regulations governing the local 
Government pension scheme (lGps), a defined benefit scheme. the most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 
31 March 2013, and rolled forward to 31 March 2016 by a qualified independent actuary. this scheme is now closed to future accrual 
with a deficit management agreement in place with the scheme which enables rhp’s share of the deficit to be managed without 
triggering a termination debt. we have used our office building as security to effectively manage future deficit contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the association contributed to the scheme at a rate of 26.4% of pensionable salaries. the 
principal assumptions used by the actuary in assessing scheme liabilities on an Frs102 section 28 basis were:

2016 
% p. a.

2015 
% p. a.

rate of increase in salaries 3.3 3.3

rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.4 2.4

inflation assumption 2.4 2.4

discount rate 3.7 3.2

Expected return on assets n/a 5.7

 

Fair value of employer assets: 2016 2015

Equities 5,856 5,952

Bonds 2,364 3,026

Gilts 637 -

property 1,039 1,009

cash 134 101

10,030 10,088

 
Life Expectancy from age 65 (years):

In Years: Males Females

current pensioners 22.2 24.4

Future pensioners 24.3 26.9

life expectancy is based on the pFa92 and pMa92 tables, projected to calendar year 2017 for current pensioners and 2033 for 
prospective pensioners.  age ratings are applied to the above table based on membership profile.
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Net pension liability as at: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

present value of funded liabilities (13,258) (14,171)

Fair value of employer assets (bid value) 10,030 10,088

Net liability in balance sheet (3,228) (4,083)
 

The amounts recognised in the income and expenditure statements are as follows: 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

current service cost 247 158

net interest on the defined liability (asset) 126 133

admin expenses 5 -

Total charged to current year I&E account 378 291

 

Other comprehensive income 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

actuarial gains /(losses) 942 (1,031)

cumulative actuarial gains & losses 89 (1,981)

Expected return on employer assets (356) (503)

 

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit 
obligation

2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

opening defined benefit obligation 14,171 12,033

current service cost 190 158

interest cost 449 515

contributions by members 45 43

Experience gain on defined benefit obligation - (119)

past service cost including curtailments 57 -

change in financial assumptions (1,298) 1,847

Estimated benefits paid (356) (306)

Closing defined benefit obligation 13,258 14,171
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Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of employer assets 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

opening fair value of employer assets 10,088 8,898

contributions by members 45 43

contributions by the employer 291 253

Estimated benefits paid (356) (306)

interest on assets 323 382

admin expenses (5) -

return on assets less interest (356) 818

Closing fair value of employer assets 10,030 10,088

 
Reconciliation of opening and closing surplus

Movement in deficit during the year
2016 

£’000
2015 

£’000

association share of scheme liabilities at beginning of year (4,083) (3,135)

Movement in year:

current service cost (252) (158)

contributions 291 253

other finance costs (126) (133)

actuarial (losses)/ gains 942 (910)

Association share of scheme liabilities at end of year (3,228) (4,083)
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10 BOarD memBerS anD eXecutive DirectOrS

the executive directors are the key management personnel for rhp.  their emoluments are disclosed below:

Executive Directors

Salary, inc 
bonus 
£’000

Pension 
contr’ns 

£’000

2016 
Total 

£’000

2015 
Total 

£’000

chief Executive 
david done 

157 35 192 194

Executive director of customer service 
sharon Millard (joined Feb 2016)

20 - 20 -

Executive director of Finance 
philip day

129 12 141 105

Executive director of customer service 
sarah thomas (left Jan 2016)

100 9 109 140

Executive director of corporate services 
amina Graham

125 11 136 136

Aggregate emoluments 531 67 598 575

the emoluments of the highest paid director, the chief Executive, excluding pension contributions, were £157,000 (2015: £160,000). 
the emoluments include a bonus of £8,074. the chief Executive received the same pay award as other employees.

the chief Executive was a member of the lBrpF, a defined benefit final salary pension scheme. as this scheme is now closed to 
future accrual, the chief Executive is now a member of shps. he is an ordinary member of the pension scheme and no enhanced 
or special terms apply. the association does not make any further contribution to an individual pension arrangement for the chief 
Executive.

regular Board members receive remuneration of £4,600 per annum; committee chairs receive £8,000 per annum, with the chair 
of the Board receiving £11,500 per annum. when councillors were nominated to the Board by the council they did not receive 
remuneration. 

Expenses paid during the period to Board members amounted to £3,643 (2015: £75). this excludes the remuneration and expenses 
for the chief Executive who is also a Board member.

Board Members Remuneration

2016 
Total 

£’000

2015 
Total 

£’000

angelika chaffey (vice chair) 8 8

catriona simons (until July 2015) 3 8

ian nunn (from July 2015) 3 -

John newbury (chair) 12 12

Juliet oram (until July 2015) 2 5

Malcom levi 8 8

nigel taylor (from July 2015) 3 -

peter Marsh 8 8

ursula wyman (from July 2015) 3 -

cllr. stephen speak 7 1

suzanne avery (from July 2015) 3 -

toby d’olier 5 5

Total Remuneration 65 55
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11 taXatiOn

rhp and co-op homes are not liable for tax on their ordinary activities due to their charitable status.

 
rhp Finance plc’s results for the year do not give rise to any tax charge. 

12 tanGiBle fiXeD aSSetS – hOuSinG prOpertieS

Group Completed 
properties 

£’000

Properties  
under 

construction 
£’000

Completed 
shared 

ownership 
properties 

£’000

Shared 
ownership 

under 
construction 

£’000
Total 

£’000

Historic Cost

at 1 april 2015 265,768 20,987 1,955 - 288,710

works to existing properties 9,640 - - - 9,640

additions - 7,663 - 1,731 9,394

interest capitalised - 597 - - 597

development allowance capitalised - 775 - - 775

schemes completed 15,634 (15,634) - - -

disposals (587) - - - (587)

at 31 March 2016 290,455 14,388 1,955 1,731 308,529

Depreciation and impairment

at 1 april 2015 36,318 - - - 36,318

depreciation charged in year 4,802 - - - 4,802

impairment charged in year - - - - -

released on disposal (301) - - - (301)

at 31 March 2016 40,819 - - - 40,819

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2016 249,636 14,388 1,955 1,731 267,710

at 31 March 2015 229,450 20,987 1,955 - 252,392
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Association Completed 
properties 

£’000

Properties  
under 

construction 
£’000

Completed 
Shared 

ownership 
properties 

£’000

Shared 
ownership 

under 
construction 

£’000
Total 

£’000

Historic Cost

at 1 april 2015 243,130 20,987 1,955 - 266,072

works to existing properties 9,072 - - - 9,072

additions - 7,663 - 1,731 9,394

interest capitalised - 597 - - 597

development allowance capitalised - 775 - - 775

schemes completed 15,634 (15,634) - - -

disposals (360) - - - (360)

at 31 March 2016 267,476 14,388 1,955 1,731 285,550

Depreciation and impairment

at 1 april 2015 33,683 - - - 33,683

depreciation charged in year 4,356 - - - 4,356

impairment charged in year - - - - -

released on disposal (74) - - - (74)

at 31 March 2016 37,965 - - - 37,965

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2016 229,511 14,388 1,955 1,731 247,585

at 31 March 2015 209,447 20,987 1,955 - 232,389

EXPENDITURE ON WORKS TO EXISTING PROPERTIES

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

improvement works capitalised 10,766 24,951 10,766 24,951

components capitalised 9,641 7,734 9,073 7,102

amounts charged to income and expenditure 3,668 2,041 3,604 1,979

24,075 34,726 23,443 34,032

COMPLETED HOUSING PROPERTIES comprise:

Freehold 265,136 249,776 247,409 232,213

long leasehold 2,574 2,616 176 176

267,710 252,392 247,585 232,389
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13 financial cOmmitmentS

Capital expenditure commitments are as follows:

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts 6,739 6,233 6,739 6,233

Expenditure authorised by the board but not contracted for 34,801 32,426 34,801 32,426

41,540 38,659 41,540 38,659

the above commitments will be financed primarily through borrowings, which are available for draw-down under existing loan 
arrangements, and free cash flow. 

14 SOcial hOuSinG aSSiStance

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

total accumulated social housing grant received 
or receivable at 31 March 2016 32,104 28,832 21,211 17,805

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 320 301 187 167

held as deferred income 31,784 28,531 21,024 17,638

32,104 28,832 21,211 17,805

 
15 intereSt capitaliSatiOn

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

aggregate amount of finance costs included 
in the cost of housing properties

1,790 1,192 1,790 1,192

average rate used for capitalisation 4.07% 4.12% 4.07% 4.12%
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16 Other fiXeD aSSetS

Group Investment 
properties 

£’000

Temporary 
Social 

Housing 
improvements 

£’000

Furniture, 
fixtures & 

fittings 
£’000

Computers, 
office 

equipment & 
vehicles 

£’000
TOTAL 
£’000

Cost

at 1 april 2015 7,965 86 1,732 1,619 11,402

additions - - 212 236 448

at 31 March 2016 7,965 86 1,944 1,855 11,850

Depreciation & Impairment

at 1 april 2015 1,847 82 657 1,086 3,672

charged in the year 34 3 220 233 490

at 31 March 2016 1,881 85 877 1,319 4,162

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2016 6,084 1 1,067 536 7,688

at 31 March 2015 6,118 4 1,075 533 7,730

Association Freehold 
offices 

£’000

Furniture, 
fixtures & 

fittings 
£’000

Computers, 
office 

equipment & 
vehicles 

£’000
TOTAL 
£’000

Cost

at 1 april 2015 7,965 1,725 1,535 11,225

additions - 209 236 445

at 31 March 2016 7,965 1,934 1,771 11,670

Depreciation & Impairment

at 1 april 2015 1,847 633 1,038 3,518

charged in the year 34 209 232 475

at 31 March 2016 1,881 841 1,270 3,993

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2016 6,084 1,092 501 7,677

at 31 March 2015 6,118 1,092 497 7,707
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17 intanGiBle fiXeD aSSetS 

Association & Group Computer Software 
£’000

TOTAL 
£’000

Cost

at 1 april 2015 1,392 1,392

additions 228 228

at 31 March 2016 1,620 1,620

Depreciation & Impairment

at 1 april 2015 973 973

charged in the year 236 236

at 31 March 2016 1,209 1,209

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2016 411 411

at 31 March 2015 419 419

 
18 inveStmentS in SuBSiDiarieS

as required by statute, the financial statements consolidate the results of rhp Finance plc and co-op homes (south) limited (a 
registered provider), which were subsidiaries of the association at the end of the year. the association has the right to appoint 
members to the Boards of the two subsidiaries and thereby exercise control over them. rhp is the ultimate parent undertaking.

the association has provided co-op homes (south) limited with a loan facility for £8.5m to acquire 263 properties from 6 other 
housing associations, and for general purposes consistent with its business plan. the facility is underpinned by an arm’s length 
commercial loan agreement, and interest is payable at prevailing market rates. as at 31 March 2016 the balance outstanding on the 
loan was £3.4m (2015: £3.8m). the loan is repayable in full in 2031. interest payable to the association from co-op homes (south) 
limited was £44,840 (2015: £48,630).

rhp Finance plc. raises finance for the use of rhp and its subsidiaries. it is a company limited by shares with 100% shares held 
by the association. as at 31 March, the association had part-subscribed to all 50,000 shares at £1 for £0.25p a share for a total of 
£12,500.

Association 2016 
£’000

2015 
£’000

loan to subsidiary 3,374 3,844

investment in rhp Finance plc 13 13

3,387 3,857
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19 prOpertieS fOr Sale

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

shared ownership properties:

completed properties - 58 - 58

work in progress 549 - 549 -

 549 58 549 58

20 inveStment prOpertieS

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

as at 1 april 2015 6,605 5,329 7,051 5,775

increase in fair value 40 1,276 40 1,276

As at 31 March 2016 6,645 6,605 7,091 7,051

rhp’s investment properties are the commercial element of the office building and a small portfolio of shops. these were valued 
as at 31 March 2016 by Jones laing lasalle limited (Jll), professional external valuers. the full valuation of properties was 
undertaken in accordance with the appraisal and valuation Manual of the royal institute of chartered surveyors as follows.

in valuing investment properties, a discounted cash flow methodology was adopted with key assumptions.

we have adopted a variety of capitalisation rates dependent upon the characteristics of the individual assets and these are 
described in the relevant sections of the valuation report prepared by Jll.

in accordance with standard valuation methodology we have made no explicit assumptions regarding general inflation or increases 
in annual rentals since the market’s view of these is reflected in the capitalisation rates adopted. where our opinion of the current 
rental value differs from the contracted rent, we have assumed a reversion to the current rental value at the next appropriate event 
having regard to the terms of the tenancies.

21 DeBtOrS

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

rent and service charges receivable 2,844 2,864 2,691 2,711

less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (2,095) (1,785) (2,009) (1,695)

749 1,079 682 1,016

social housing Grant receivable 1,181 2,534 1,181 2,534

other debtors 225 227 66 138

amount owed from subsidiary undertaking - - 132 95

prepayments and accrued income 793 1,496 762 1,476

2,948 5,336 2,823 5,259
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22 current aSSet inveStmentS

Group and Association March 2016 
£’000

March 2015 
£’000

term deposits 60,484 67,000

 
term deposits are interest bearing savings with no more than 95 days’ notice placed with various united Kingdom banks. the 
deposits are invested in a variety of high street banks which is in line with our treasury policy.

23 creDitOrS: amOuntS fallinG Due Within One year

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Bank overdraft - 19 - -

Bank loans (note 25) 16,032 14,030 16,000 14,000

trade creditors 379 2,102 230 1,867

rent and service charges received in advance - 888 - 888

other taxation and social security 26 37 1 16

disposal proceeds Fund (note 27) 354 179 354 179

amounts owed to subsidiary undertaking - - 673 -

other creditors 470 429 228 165

accruals and deferred income 9,114 7,276 8,195 7,045

26,375 24,960 25,681 24,160

24 creDitOrS: amOuntS fallinG Due after mOre than One year

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Bank loans (note 25) 217,863 232,922 79,614 94,700

disposals proceeds Fund (note 27) 1,738 1,313 1,738 1,313

amount owed to subsidiary undertaking - - 137,797 137,735

deferred temporary social housing grant 6 7 - -

deferred to grant income (note 14) 31,784 28,531 21,024 17,637

251,391 262,773 240,173 251,385
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25 DeBt analySiS

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Due within one year

Bank loans 16,032 14,030 16,000 14,000

Due after more than one year

Bank loans 80,358 95,684 79,906 95,197

amount owed to subsidiary - - 138,601 138,601

2048 Bond issue 138,601 138,601 - -

234,991 248,315 234,507 247,798

Less costs

unamortised finance costs (291) (497) (291) (497)

amount owed to subsidiary - - (805) (866)

2048 bond issue (805) (866) - -

(1,096) (1,363) (1,096) (1,363)

Book value net of unamortised costs 233,895 246,952 233,411 246,435

the £138.6m 2048 bond is actively trading on the open market and as at 31 March 2016, it had a fair value of £127.3m (2015: £136.7m) 
at ask price of 90.9p (2015: 97.65p). 

Debt is repayable as follows:

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

within one year 16,032 14,030 16,000 14,000

within two to five years 15,156 16,193 15,000 16,000

after five years 203,803 218,092 203,507 217,798

234,991 248,315 234,507 247,798

Bank loans are secured by fixed charges on properties, with a value of £593m as at 31 March 2016. at 31 March 2016 the Group had 
undrawn loan facilities of £40m (2015: £115m). 

Lender Facility

dexia Finance limited 90,000

2048 Bond issue holders 138,601

lloyds bank plc 20,000

royal Bank of scotland (rBs) plc 20,000

national westminster Bank plc 484
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26 DeferreD Grant incOme

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

at 1 april 2015 28,530 25,294 17,637 14,266

Grant received in the year 3,574 3,538 3,574 3,538

released to income in the year (320) (301) (187) (167)

At 31 March 2016 31,784 28,531 21,024 17,637

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

amounts to be released within one year 320 301 187 167

amounts to be released in more than one year 31,464 28,230 20,837 17,470

31,784 28,531 21,024 17,637

27 DiSpOSal prOceeDS funD

Group & Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

at 1 april 2015 1,492 1,039

net sale proceeds 777 954

interest accrued 2 4

withdrawals (179) (505)

Balance at 31 March 2016 2,092 1,492

due within one year 354 179

due after more than one year 1,738 1,313

2,092 1,492

withdrawals from the dpF were used for approved works to existing housing properties.  
as at 31 March 2016, there were no amounts due for repayment and £777k has been received into the fund in the year.



RHP 
Financial statements57

28 prOviSiOn fOr liaBilitieS

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Group

Brought forward 179 224 - -

paid in year (1) (16) - -

credited to the income & Expenditure (72) (29) - -

106 179 - -

shps pension deficit 3,041 2,830 3,041 2,830

At 31 March 2016 3,147 3,009 3,041 2,830

provisions relate to cost associated with the upkeep of properties under repair covenants entered by co-op homes. it accounts 
for these costs in accordance with Frs102 (provisions, contingent liabilities and assets) which usually require the costs to be 
recognised when the work is undertaken.

29 nOn-equity capital

the association is a charitable registered society and therefore has no share capital. Each member (see table below) agrees to 
contribute £1 in the event of the association winding up.

March 
2016

Restated 
March 2015

at 1 april 2015 9 13

Joining during the year 4 -

leaving during the year (2) (4)

At 31 March 2016 11 9
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30 leaSeS

operating lease payments amounting to £101k (2015:£115k) are due within one year. the leases to which this relates are as follows: 
 

Group 2016 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

within one year - 101 - 115

one to five years - 127 - 96

Beyond five years 14 7 14 11

14 235 14 222

Association
Land & 

buildings 
2016 

£’000 

Vehicles, 
office 

equipment & 
computers 

2016 
£’000 

 
Land & 

building 
2015 

£’000 

Vehicles, 
office 

equipment & 
computers 

2015 
£’000 

within one year - 101 - 115

one to five years - 127 - 96

Beyond five years  - 7 - 11

- 235 - 222

31 cOntinGent liaBilitieS

there were no contingent liabilities at 31 March 2016 (2015: £nil).

32 relateD partieS

during the year there were two tenant members of the Board (Juliet oram and angelika chaffey). Ms oram pays £159.88 per week 
and Ms chaffey pays £129.58 per week. neither tenant owed any outstanding monies to rhp at 31 March 2016. there was also a 
member who was a leaseholder (toby d’olier). the tenancies and lease are on normal commercial terms and they were not able to 
use their position to their advantage.

co-op homes (south) limited and rhp are both regulated by the homes and communities agency. For further information on 
transactions between rhp and co-op homes see note 20.

Transactions with un-regulated subsidiary
rhp Finance plc is an unregulated subsidiary of the Group. during the year, rhp had invested £12,500 (2015:£12,500) in the share capital of 
its non-regulated subsidiary and received a £138.6m loan from its non-regulated subsidiary. audit fees of £7,500 and other administrative 
expenses of rhp Finance plc are borne by rhp, the immediate and ultimate parent undertaking.
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33 recOnciliatiOn Of OperatinG SurpluS tO net caSh inflOW frOm OperatinG activitieS

March 2016 
£’000s

March 2015 
£’000s

operating surplus 21,681 20,058

pensions operating charge - lBrpF 378 360

pension contributions paid – lBrpF (291) (253)

release of temporary social housing deferred grant (320) (301)

depreciation of tangible fixed assets 5,489 5,114

dilapidations released (73) (45)

28,864 24,933

Working capital movements

decrease/ (increase) in debtors 3,484 (400)

(increase) in properties for sale (549) (58)

decrease in creditors 1,205 2,310

Net inflow from operating activities 31,004 26,785

34 analySiS Of net DeBt

April 2016 
£’000 

Cashflows 
£’000 

Non cash 
£’000 

March 2016  
£’000 

cash at bank and in hand 14,093 (4,749) 9,344

Changes in cash 14,093 (4,749) - 9,344

current asset investment 67,000 (6,516) - 60,484

loans due in one year (14,030) 2,002 - (16,032)

loans due in more than one year (229,089) 17,131 - (211,598)

Changes in debt (162,026) 3,864 - (158,162)

unamortised finance cost 1,363 - (267) 1,096

Changes in net debt (160,663) 3,864 (267) 157,006
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35 caSh & caSh equivalentS

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

cash at bank and in hand 9,344 14,093 8,925 13,717

short term deposits 60,484 67,000 60,484 67,000

current asset investment 69,828 81,093 69,409 80,717

Bank overdraft - (19) - -

Cash and cash equivalents 69,828 81,074 64,409 80,717

36 financial aSSetS anD liaBilitieS

Group Association

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

2016 
£’000 

2015 
£’000 

Financial assets that are equity instruments measured at cost less impairment

investments in subsidiary undertakings - - 13 13

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost 

trade debtors 749 1,079 682 1,016

amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 132 95

other debtors 2,199 4,257 2,009 4,148

Financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income 

Bank loans 19,096 19,804 19,096 19,804

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 137,797 137,735

loans 214,799 227,148 76,518 88,896

Finance leases 249 236 235 222

trade creditors 379 2,102 230 1,867

other creditors 43,492 38,660 32,213 27,463

280,963 293,286 268,925 281,259

the fair values of the assets and liabilities held at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of 
Financial position are determined using quoted prices.

amortised cost is the amount at which a financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, less principal 
repayments and plus or minus any amortised original premium or discount (calculated using the effective interest rate method).

Dexia
the fair value of the two dexia cancellable loans to rhp are based on the market value of similar debt instruments at 31 March 2016. these 
loans have been classified as other basic instruments due to the loans being embedded fixes with optionality in favour to the lender.
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Bond
the fair value of the loans to rhp is based on the market value of similar debt instruments at 31 March 2016. Fair values of the 
financial liabilities are stated at ask price of 90.903p and financial assets are stated at Bid price of 89.562p.

the bond is accounted for as a basic financial instrument. loan notes which are basic financial instruments are initially recorded at 
the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar loan. subsequently, they are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. loan notes that are receivable within one year are not discounted.

Intercompany loan 
the loan provided to co-op homes is on the basis on liBor plus 0.625%. this loan is deemed to be basic financial instrument as the 
margin is a reasonable market rate for 2006 (when the loan was granted). the loan is due to be repaid by March 2031.

Financial risks
the Group has a variety of controls in place to manage liquidity risk, credit risk, and exchange risk and minimise financial loss. the 
most important aspects are:

•	 For investments, where viable, all counterparties must meet the Group’s minimum credit rating of a-1 long term and p-1 short term.
•	 there is no speculative use of derivatives, currency or other instruments.

the debt maturity profile is shown in note 25.

the fixed rate financial liabilities have a weighted average interest rate of 4.08% (2015: 4.18%) and the weighted average period for 
which it is fixed is 21 years (2015: 20 years).

Foreign currency risk
other than short-term debtors, the Group’s financial assets comprise cash held in deposit accounts and cash at bank. they are 
sterling denominated and attract interest at rates that vary with bank rates.

Capital risk management 
all of our debt agreements (bond and loan agreements) contain financial and information based covenants which we are obliged 
to comply with. the bond contains financial covenants relating to asset cover whilst the loan agreements contain interest cover, 
gearing and asset cover based covenants. 

our dexia gearing covenant places the greatest constraint upon our ability to borrow additional debt.

Failure to comply with any covenant would lead to a default and security for the loan or bond becoming immediately enforceable 
and the loan becoming immediately due and repayable.

Interest rate risk
the Group has limited exposure to interest rate fluctuation due to the high percentage of borrowings on a fixed rate. 

all of our debt agreements (bond and loan agreements) contain financial and information based covenants which we are obliged 
to comply with. the bond contains financial covenants relating to asset cover whilst the loan agreements contain interest cover, 
gearing and asset cover based covenants. our dexia gearing covenant places the greatest constraint upon our ability to borrow 
additional debt.



RHP 
Financial statements 62

In
tr

o
d

u
ctIo

n
FIn

a
n

c
Ia

l r
ev

Iew
va

lu
e Fo

r
 M

o
n

ey
a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

37 tranSitiOn tO frS102

this is the first year that the Group has presented its results under Frs102. the last financial statements under uK Gaap were 
prepared for the year ended 31 March 2015. the date of transition to Frs102 was 1 april 2014 and set out below are the changes in 
accounting policies which reconcile the surplus for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 under old uK Gaap to the surplus under 
Frs102 for the same period.

Explanations

Changes for FRS102 adoption 

a. SHPS Pension
under section 28 the Group is now required to recognise the net present value of any contractual agreements to make additional 
payments for a past deficit. using a discount rate of 1.92%, this has resulted in a net liability of £3.3m (£3.5m prior year) being 
recognised as a provision in the opening reserves and increase in the surplus of £181k. 

b. Financial instruments
one of the bank loans with dexia was previously reported at amortised cost. the loan includes an option for the bank to cancel the 
fixed aspect of the loan and to move to a rate of the bank’s choosing in a way that causes the loan to be classified as non-basic. 

the fair value of the loan has been calculated at the year-end by the Group’s treasury consultants based on market information 
relating to similar instruments.

c. Grant accounting
Grants were previously netted off the cost of the related asset. under Frs102, Government grants must be accounted for using the 
accruals model or the performance model. as the association accounts for its properties at cost, it has adopted the accruals model 
for government grants, as required by sorp 2014.

under the accruals model, the Government grants have been allocated to the related assets and amortised over the useful 
economic life of those assets. the unamortised amount is held within deferred income, split between <1 year and >1 year. the 
amount of amortised grant that has been recognised in opening reserves is £1.8m, of which £1.5m is for 2014 and prior years. £301k 
is recognised in turnover.

d. Defined benefit pension scheme 
the net pension finance cost recognised in the income and Expenditure account for the year ended 31 July 2015 under the previous 
uK Gaap was the net of the expected return on the pension plan assets and the interest on pension liabilities. Frs102 requires the 
recognition in the statement of comprehensive income, of a net interest cost, calculated by multiplying the net plan obligations 
by the market yield on high quality corporate bonds (the discount rate applied). this has resulted in a finance cost of £12k in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

e. Investment properties
under Frs102, the cost of the head office has been split between ppE (property, plant and equipment) and investment properties. 
properties classed as investments are measured at their fair market valuation on the balance sheet.
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Restated consolidated statement of financial position 
Group Note

March 2015 
£’000s

March 2014 
£’000s

original reserves 65,987 54,043

2014 changes (7,641) -

amortisation of government grants 26 301 1,489

write back depreciation on housing properties as a 
result of grants moving to long term creditors

12 (199) (1,071)

shps pension adjustment 9 181 (3,472)

Financial instruments at Fair value 25 (2,739) (2,458)

investment properties at Fair value 18 2,903 (2,131)

restate reserves 58,793 46,400

Restated reserves 58,793 46,400

Restated consolidated statement of financial position 
Association Note

March 2015 
£’000s

March 2014 
£’000s

original reserves 62,037 50,824

2014 changes (7,442) -

amortisation of government grants 26 167 344

write back depreciation on housing properties as a 
result of grants moving to long term creditors

12 (97) (197)

shps pension adjustment 10 170 (3,000)

Financial instruments at Fair value 25 (2,739) (2,458)

investment properties at Fair value 22 (2,458)

(2,131) 22 2,902 (2,131)

Restate reserves 54,999 43,382

Restated surplus for the year ended 31 March 2015 
Group £’000s

original surplus on ordinary activities before tax 12,977

Movement in financial instruments at fair value (2,739)

Movement in fair value investment properties 2,903

net amortisation of government grants and depreciation 102

Restated surplus 13,243
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